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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF FULLERTON INDIA 
HOME FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the Financial Statements of Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 
2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and notes to the 
Financial Statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2022 and profit, total 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under sub-section 
(10) of section 143 of the Act (“the SAs”). Our responsibilities under those SAs are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the ICAFs Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance 
in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description 
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our 
audit

Expected Credit Loss - Impairment of 
carrying value of loans and advances

We performed audit procedures set out 
below:

• Read the Company’s Board approved 
Ind-AS 109 based impairment 
provisioning Methodology and 
Estimates policy

Under Ind AS 109, Expected Credit Loss (ECL) 
is required to be determined for recognising 
impairment loss on financial assets which are 
stated at amortised cost or carried at fair value 
through other comprehensive income. The 
Company exercises significant judgement using 
assumptions over both when and how much to 
record as impairment for loans and advances 
and estimation of the amount of the impairment 
provision for loans and advances.

• Understood and assessed the 
Company’s process and controls on 
measurement and recognition of 
impairment in the loan portfolio.

• Test checked loans in stage 1, 2 and 3 to 
ascertain that they were allocated to the 
appropriate stage.

The calculation of impairment loss or ECL is
based on significant management estimates and
judgements, which are as under:
• Judgements about credit risk characteristics 

for collective evaluation of impairment 
under various stages of ECL.

• Loan staging criteria
• Consideration of probability scenarios and 

forward looking macro-economic factors
• Model estimations - Inherently judgmental 

models are used to estimate ECL which 
involves determining Probabilities of 
Default (“PD”), Loss Given Default 
(“LGD”), and Exposures at Default 
(“EAD”).

• Inputs and Judgements used in 
determination of management overlay at 
various asset stages

• Test checked PD and LGD calculation 
workings performed by management, 
including testing data used in 
assessment and evaluation of whether 
the results support appropriateness of 

. the PDs at portfolio level.

• Test checked the calculations of 
determining Exposure at Default (EAD).

• Performed an assessment of the ECL 
provision levels at each stage including 
management’s assessment on COVID 
19 impact to determine if they were 
reasonable considering the Company’s 
portfolio, risk profile, credit risk 
management practices and the 
macroeconomic environment.

ECL requires a large variety of data as an input 
to the model. This increases the risk of 
completeness and accuracy of the data that has 
been used to create assumptions in the model.

In view of the criticality of the item to the 
Financial Statements, complex nature of 
assumptions & judgements exercised by the 
management and loans forming a major portionO<?
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Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our 
audit

of the Company’s assets and impairment charge 
for the year being material to the net profit for 
the year, in our opinion this is considered as a 
Key Audit Matter.

We have carried out the following 
procedures to verify the effectiveness of IT 
controls:
• We obtained an understanding of the 

Company’s business IT environment and 
key changes if any during the audit 
period that may be relevant to the audit.

IT Systems and controls
The Company financial accounting and 
reporting systems are highly dependent on the 
effective working of the operating and 
accounting system.

The company has separate software 
applications for management of its loan 
portfolio from origination to servicing and 
closure and for the routine accounting. Transfer 
of data from / to these software are critical for 
accurate compilation of financial information.

• Our audit procedures included verifying, 
testing and reviewing the design and 
operating effectiveness of the key 
automated and manual business cycle 
controls and logic for system generated 
reports relevant to the audit by verifying 
the reports/returns and other financial 
and non-financial information generated 
from the system on a test check basis

Due to extensive volumes, variety and 
complexity of transactions the operating system 
is functioning, consistently and accurately, 
specifically with respect to following:
• Interest, Fee income and other charges 

collected on Loans
• Bifurcation of the Loan Portfolio based on 

maturity pattern and Assets Classification 
based on ageing of default

• We have tested and reviewed the 
reconciliations between the loan 
origination/ servicing application and the 
accounting software to mitigate the risk 
of incorrect data flow to/from separate 
application software.We have identified 6IT systems and controls’ as 

key audit matter because of significant use of IT 
system and the scale and complexity of the IT 
architecture. Our audit outcome is dependent on 
the effective functioning of such operating and 
accounting system._____ _________________

• We have also obtained management 
representations wherever considered 
necessary.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the 
other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report 
but does not include the Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other 
information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

* c.f^
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Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Other Information, if, we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, 
we are required to communicate the matters to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements
The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in sub
section (5) of Section 134 of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified 
under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as 

amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for 
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 
to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process.

e
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

ii. Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under the section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

iii. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company 
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial 
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

v.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

^LuWlBAMpj
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the financial year ended 
31st March 2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication

Other Matter
The Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2021 were audited by 
predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those Financial Statements vide their 
report dated May 24, 2021.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give 
in “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as appears from our examination of those books;

c. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Other Comprehensive Income, 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report 
are in agreement with the books of account;

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 as amended;

e. on the basis of written representations received from the directors, as on 31st March, 2022 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the other directors is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2022, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;
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f. with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial 
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate report in “Annexure B”;

3. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and 
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a. the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 
Financial Statements - Refer Note 40 (a) to the Financial Statements.

b. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses;

c. there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor, 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

d. (i) The Management has represented that, to the best of if s knowledge and belief, as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts (Refer note 52 (i) to the Financial Statements), no 
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii) The Management has represented, that, to the best of if s knowledge and belief, as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts (Refer note 52 (i) to the Financial Statements), no 
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e), as provided under clause (i) & 
(ii) above, contain any material misstatement.

e. The company has neither declared dividend nor paid during the year.
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4. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the 
Company to its directors, including sitting fees paid to directors, during the year is in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act;

For M. P. Chitale & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No.l01851W

"1
Murtuza Vajihi 
Partner
Membership No.: 112555 
UDIN: 22112555AIUEER8197 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 11,2022

Z:\USERl\Fullerton HFCVAUD 21-22\March 2022\Final\Final audit report FY 21-22.docx
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
(REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER ‘REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND 

REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS’ SECTION OF OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS 
OF FULLERTON INDIA HOME FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED OF EVEN DATE)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including 
quantitative details and situation of its Property, Plant and Equipment including 
intangible assets.

In our opinion, the Company’s program of verifying Property, Plant and Equipment once 
in a year, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its 
assets. Pursuant to such program, the physical verification of Property, Plant and 
Equipment, were done during the current year. We have been informed that no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(i) (a)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by 
us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties (other than 
properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed 
in favour of the lessee) classified as Property Plant and Equipment, are held in the name 
of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

(c)

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right 
of Use Assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(d)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on management 
representations, there are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company 
as at 31st March, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami 
Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(e)

The Company is in business of Housing Finance. Therefore, it does not hold any physical 
inventories. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the 

Company.

(ii) (a)

The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, 
in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. 
According to information and explanation given to us and the records examined by us, 
the quarterly returns or statements, if any filed by the Company during the year with such 
banks or financial institutions are in agreement with books of account. The return in 
respect of quarter ended March 2022 is not yet filed.

(b)

Since the Company is in business of Housing Finance, the reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company

(iii) (a)
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(b) In our opinion, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of loans, 
during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) The Company is principally engaged in the business of providing loans. In respect of 
loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of 
interest has been duly stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of 
interest have generally been regular as per repayment schedules except for 4555 cases 
having outstanding balance at year end aggregating to Rs. 87,387.10 Lacs wherein the 
repayments of principal and interest are not regular. Having regard to the nature of the 
Company’s business and the volume of information involved, it is not practicable to 
provide an itemised list of loan assets where repayment of principal and interest have not 
been regular.

(d) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the total amount overdue for more than 90 
days as at the balance sheet date are as under.

Interest overdue 
(Rs. lacs)

Total overdue 
(Rs. lacs)

No. of cases Principal amount 
overdue (Rs. lacs)

3,387.33 3,951.83564.501276

According to information and explanation given to us and the records examined by us, 
the Company has taken reasonable steps to recover the principal and interest amount.

(e) Since the Company is in business of Housing Finance, the reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) According to information and explanation given to us and the records examined by us, 
the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans that were either 
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment

(iv) There are no loans, investments, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which 
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are attracted. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us and records examined by us, the 
Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which 
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and 
the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on 
clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us and to the best of our knowledge, 
the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub
section 1 of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost Records 
and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended for the services of the Company, and, hence, reporting 
on clause 3 (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of 
examination of the books of account of the company examined by us, in our opinion, 
the Company is generally regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities 
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, 
income tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable 
to it. According to information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amount 
payable were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from 
the date they became payable.

(vii) (a)

According to the records of the Company and information and explanations given 
to us, no material disputed statutory dues that have not been deposited as on 31st 
March,2022 on account of appeal matters pending before the appropriate 
authorities.

(b)

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been 
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments made during the year under the 

Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the 
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(ix) (a)

The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or any government authority during the year.

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our 
examination of the books of account, the Company has utilized the money raised by 
way of term loans during the year for the purposes for which they were raised.

(c)

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds 
have been raised on short-term basis therefore reporting under this clause is not 
applicable.

(d)

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company 
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the 
obligations of its subsidiary and Associate;

(e)
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(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our 
examination of the books of account, Company does not have any investment in 
subsidiary and associate therefore, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

W (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records, the Company has not made any preferential allotment 
or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the 
year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company

(b)

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company and 
according to the information and explanations given to us, we have not come across 
any instances of fraud by the Company. Following are the instances of fraud on the 
Company, noticed or reported during the year,

(xi) (a)

Amount involved (Rs. In Lacs)Nature of FraudNo of instances
Borrower related fraud 44.403

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this 
report.

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaint received by the 
Company during the year, while determining the nature, timing and extent of our 
audit procedures

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence, reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of 
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the 
applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate 
with the size and the nature of its business.

(xiv) (a)
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(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the 
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent 
of our audit procedures.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions 
with directors or persons connected with directors. Accordingly, reporting under 
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) therefore reporting under this clause is not 
applicable.

(xvi) (a)

The Company is a Housing Finance Company and it holds a valid Certificate of 
Registration (CoR) from the National Housing Bank issued under Section 29A(2) 
of the National Housing Bank Act 1987 for conducting housing finance business.

(b)

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations 
made by the Reserve Bank of India.

(c)

In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined 
in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and 
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit 
and the immediately preceding financial year.

(d)

'xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and 
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come 
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the 
date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities 
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year 
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the 
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts 
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will 
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on 
other than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII 
to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of 
Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the 

Order is not applicable for the year.

assurance

(xx) (a)

13



M. R Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(b) There are no unspent amounts under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act, 
pursuant to any ongoing project requiring transfer to special account in compliance 
with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, 
reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

(Xxi) The Company is not required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements and 
therefore reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For M. P. Chitale & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Ifihn Regn. No.l01851W

A
Murtuza Vajihi 
Partner
Membership No.: 112555 
UDIN: 22112555AIUEER8197 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 11, 2022
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
(REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2(F) UNDER ‘REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND 

REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS’ SECTION OF OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS 
OF FULLERTON INDIA HOME FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED OF EVEN DATE)

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE 
AFORESAID FINANCIAL STATEMENTS UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF SUB-SECTION (3) 

__________OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (THE ‘ACT’)__________

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial reporting of Fullerton 
India Home Finance Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) as of 31st 
March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for the 
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the standards on 
Auditing prescribed under sub-section (10) of Section 143 of the Act, to the extent applicable to 
the audit of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system with reference to financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Financial 
Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements.
A Company's internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to Financial 
Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets 
of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance 
with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition 
of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Financial 
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Financial 
Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31st 
March, 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M. P. Chitale & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Wm Regn. No.l01851W

Murtuza Vajihi 
Partner 
Membership No.: 112555 
UDIN: 22112555AIUEER8197 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 11,2022
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Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited 
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2022 

(■* lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)
Particulars Note

ASSETS
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Trade receivables
Loans
Other financial assets

2 3,680
39,955

2,499

6,818
59,566
30,750

3
4
5 51 68

3,93,051
2,825

3,65,486
4,101

6
7

4,42,061 4,66,789

Non financial assets 
Current tax assets (net)
Deferred tax asset (net)
Other non financial assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Right of use assets 
Other Intangible assets 
Intangible assets under development

8 1,350
6,560

621
9 5,638

66210 575
11 278 456

1,85812 1,646
13 170 197

013 11
9,13310,889

4,52,950 4,75,922Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
Liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

Trade payables
i) total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises
ii) total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises 

and small enterprises

14
87 36

' 260266

1,00,186
7,218

2,86,263
14,405

98,285
9,776

2,57,890
16,787

15Debt Securities 
Subordinated liabilities 
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities

16
17
18

4,08,3683,83,091
Non financial liabilities 

Provisions
Other non financial liabilities

886 54519
1,4751,71820
2,0202,604

Equity
Equity share capital 
Other equity

30,803
34,731

30,803
36,452

21
22

65,53467,255

4,75,9224,52,950Total liabilities and equity

1-56Refer Summary of significant accounting policies and accompanying notes 
which form an integral part of the financial statements______________

As per our report of even date attached.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Fullerton India Home Finance Company Lirryted

Par M P Chitale 8. Co 
Chartered Accountants

\
i

May Pareek 
(jon-Executive Director 
DIN: 08134389

Shantanu Mitra
Chairman, Non-Executive Director 
DIN: 03019468

Murtuza Vajihi 
Partner

MUMBAI 10O
& Jitendra Maheshwari 

Company Secretary
ICSI Reg. No.: 19621

Ashlsh Chaudhary 
Chief Financial Officer

**
C.A-

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 11 May 2022

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 11 May 2022
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Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

lakhs)
Particulars Note

Revenue from operations
Interest income
Fees and commission income
Gain on derecognition of financial instruments held at amortized cost 
Net gain on fair value changes 
Ancillary income

Total revenue from operations

23 48,363 51,013
24 710 500

596 776
25 15 42
26 192 60

49,876 52,391

Other income
Total Income

27 509 196
50,385 52,587

27,326 31,090Finance costs
Net loss on fair value changes 
Impairment on financial instruments 
Employee benefits expense 
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 
Other expenses 

Total expenses

28
29 1
30 18,048

7,107
6,717
8,89931

11,13&43 662 716
4,520 3,03332

48,124 59,995

(7,408)Profit/(Loss) before tax 2,261

33Tax expense 
Current tax
Deferred tax expense / (credit)

8431,497
(922) (2,700)

(1,857)575
(5,551)1,686Net profit/(lo$s) aftertax

34(b)Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans 
Income tax relating to above 

Other comprehensive lncome/(loss)

(5)45
(ID 1

j£I34

(5,555)1,720Total comprehensive income/(ioss) for the year

34Earnings per equity share:
Basic earnings per share (in ^) 
Diluted earnings per share (in ^) 
Face value per share (in ^)

(1.80)
(1.80)
10.00

0.55
0.55

10.00

Refer Summary of significant accounting policies and accompanying notes which 
form an integral part of the financial statements

1-56

As per our report of even date attached.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited

or M P Chitale & Co
bartered Accountants

♦

Ajay Pareek 
Non-Executive Director
DIN :08134389

Shantanu Mitra
Chairman, Non-Executive Director
DIN :03019468

Murtuza Vajihl 
Partner

o

Jitendra Maheshwari 
Company Secretary
ICSI Reg. No.: 19621

Ashish Chaudhary 
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 11 May 2022

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 11 May 2022



Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2022

A. Equity share capital
Number of shares Amount 

H lakhs)
Particulars

Equity share of q 10 each fully paid up as at 31 March 2020
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors
Restated balance as at 31 March 2020
Changes during the year ended 31 March 2021
Equity share of q 10 each fully paid up as at 31 March 2021
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors
Restated balance at the 31 March 2021
Changes during the year ended 31 March 2022
Equity share of R10 each fully paid up as at 31 March 2022

30,80,33,193 30,803

30,80330,80,33,193

30,80,33,193 30,803

30,80,33,193 30,803

30,80330,80,33,193

{Amount in * lakhs)B. Other equity
Reserves and surplus

Reserve Fund 
under Section 
29C(i)ofthe 

NHB Act, 1987

Remeasurement 
of defined benefit 

plans

Particulars Total
Retained EarningsGeneral Reserve Capital Reserve Securities premium

1403) 16) 40,28640,186 S09Closing balance as at 31 March 2020 
Changes in accounting policy or prior period error 
Restated balance as at 31 March 2020

Securities Premium on shares Issued 
Transferred from retained earnings to reserve fund 
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 

Closing balance as at 31 March 2021 
Changes in accounting policy or prior period error 
Restated balance as at 31 March 2021

Securities Premium on shares Issued 
Transferred from retained earnings to reserve fund 
Profit / (loss) for the year 
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 

Closing balance as at 31 March 2022________________

10

(403) 16) 40,28610 40,186 S09

(5,551) (5,SSI)
(4) (4)

(5,954) 20) 34,73140,186 S0910

(5,954) 20) 34,73140,186 50910

(337). 0337
1,686 1,686

34 34
(4,605) 13 36,45210 40,186,39 847

Refer Summary of significant accounting policies and accompanying notes which form an 
integral part of the financial statements

1-56

As per our report of even date attached.

k \ For and on behalf ofthe Board of Directors ofFoiW P Chrtale & Co 
Diapered Accountants .

dWiyohJ>
Shantanu Mltra
Chairman, Non-Executive Director 
DIN: 03019468

Murtuza Vajlhi 
Partner

a;'*AUM6,v')P
o

Jnendra Maheshwarl 
Company Secretary 
1CSI Reg. No.: 19621

Ashish Chaudhary 
Chief Financial Officer** C-b.

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 11 May 2022

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 11 May 2022
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Fullerton India Home Finance Company limited 
Statement of cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2022

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

ft lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

ft lakhs)
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTMTiES 

Profit/{Loss) before tax 
Adjustments for:
Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Interest income on fixed deposits, bonds and Investments
Net (gain)/loss on financial assets at FVTPl
Impairment on financial instruments
Write off of fixed assets & intangible assets
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Fair valuation of Stock appreciation rights
Gain on derecognition of financial instruments held at amortized cost

Operating profit before working capital changes

(7,408)2,261

{284}(354)
156 122
662 716

(3,330) (3,388)

(15) (41)
6,717 18,048

1 2
(2) 23

(71)347
(776)(596)

6,9435,848

Adjustments for working capital:
- (lncrease)/decrease in loans and advances
- (Increase)/ decrease In other Assets (financial and non financial assets)
- (tncrease)/decrease in trade receivables
- Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities (Provision, financial and non financial liabilities)

(33,348)
1,101

3,397
475
(43)16

(1,007) 11,281

t
(27,390)

(2,225)
22,053
(1,238)

Cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 
Income tax paid (net)
Net cash generated from/(used In) operating activities (A) (29,615) 20,814

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property plant and equipment and intangibles
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Purchase of investments
Sale/maturity of investments
Fixed deposit placed during the year
Fixed deposit matured during the year
interest received on fixed deposits and bonds
Interest received on investments
Net cash generated from/(used In) investing activities (B)

(88) (64)
5 33

(1,26,420)
1,34,223

(3,34,140)
2,76,474

(58,076) 
86,346 

(3,42,822) 
3,61,720 

. 3;558 421
587 2,046

(47,427)51,231

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings from banks and financial institutions
Repayment of borrowings from banks and financial institutions
Payment of ancillary borrowing costs
Principal payment of lease liability
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities (C)

77,400
(1,01,304)

(338)
(514)

1,88,541
(1,65,921)

(646)
(433)

(24,755) 21,541

(5,071)
11,890

(3,139)
6,819

Net increase / (decrease) In cash and cash equivalents D=(A+B+C) 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the period (E) 
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents (CHE) 3,680 6,819

Components of cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand 
Balances with banks
- in current accounts
- in fixed deposit with maturity less than 3 months 
Cheques, drafts on hand
Cash and cash equivalents

68 50

3,295 2,668
4,1011

316
6,8193,680

Note:
The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS7) statement of cash flows.

Refer Summary of significant accounting policies and accompanying notes which form an 
■integral part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors ofFor MP Chltale & Co
Chartered Accountants Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limit

\ \

Shantanu MltraMurtuza Vajihi 
Partner xecutive DirectorChairman, Non-Executive Director

DIN : 03019468 DIN :08134389

o

i' * Jitendra Maheshwari 
Company Secretary
ICSI Reg. No. : 19621

Ashrsh Chaudhary 
Chief Financial Officer* C.K.

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 11 May 2022

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 11 May 2022



Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 
31 March 2022

1 Notes to Financial Statement

(A) Company Information
Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited ('the Compan/ or 'the entity') 1$ a public limited Company domiciled in India and 
incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The Company Is a Housing finance Company ('HFC') registered vide Registration 
number 07.0122.15 dated 14 July, 2015 with the National Housing Bank ('NHB'). The Registered address of the Company is Fullerton India 
Home Finance Company Limited, 3rd Floor, No 165, Megh Towers, Poonamallee High Road, Maduravoyal, Chennai. The Company provides 
loans to customers for purchase of home, home Improvement loans, home construction, home extensions, loans against property and 
builder finance (collectively referred to as "Loans").

As at 31 March 2022, Fullerton India Credit Limited, the holding Company owned 100% of the Company's equity share capital.

(B) Basis of preparation

(i) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared, on a going concern basis, in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016, notified 
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act"), other relevant provisions of the Act, guidelines issued by the NHB Directions 2010 
as applicable to an MFCs and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 11 May 2022.

(ii) Presentation of financial statements

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the statement of changes in equity and notes to accounts are presented in the 
format prescribed In the Schedule III vide their Notification G.S.R. 1022(E) dated 11 October 2018 for Non -Banking Financial Companies in 
Division III to the Act read with amendment to Schedule III made vide Notification G.S.R. (E) dated 24 March 2021. The statement of cash 
flow has been presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows".

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the 
reporting date and more than 12 months after the reporting date Is presented in Note 50.

(Hi) Functional and presentation currency

Indian rupees is the Company's functional currency and the currency of the primary economic environment In which the Company operates. 
Accordingly, the management has determined that financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees. All amounts have been rounded off 
to the nearest lakhs upto two decimal places, unless otherwise Indicated.

(Iv) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 
instruments and certain financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss statement (FVTPL) (refer 
accounting policy).

(v) Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, assumptions and exercise 
judgement in applying the accounting policies that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at 
the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year.

The Management believes that these estimates are prudent and reasonable and are based upon the Management's best knowledge of 
current events and actions. Actual results could differ from these estimates and differences between actual results and estimates are 
recognized in the periods in which the results are known or materialized.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about critical judgments, assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material 
adjustment In the year ended 31 March 2022 is included In the following notes to the policy :

Note 1.C2-financial instruments - Fair values, risk management and impairment of financials assets 
Note 1.C.8 - recognition of deferred tax assets;

Note 1.C.9-estimates of useful lives and the residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets;

Note 1.C.10 - Impairment test of non-financial assets : key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts including the recoverability of 
expenditure on intangible assets;

Note l.C.ll- measurement of defined benefit obligation : key actuarial assumptions and cash-settled - share-based payments

Note 1.C.12 - recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies : key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an 
outflow of resources, if any and

Note 51 - estimation uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic

*
4L C.K.



Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 
31 March 2022

(vf) Measurement of fair values
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using an appropriate valuation 
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if 
market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or [lability at the measurement date.

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial 
assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. Measurement of fair value includes 
determining appropriate valuation techniques.

The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value measurement that reflects the price that would be received to sell the asset 
or paid to transfer the liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Valuation models that employ significant unobservable inputs require a higher degree of judgment and estimation in the determination of 
fair value.

Judgment and estimation are usually required for the selection of the appropriate valuation methodology, determination of expected future 
cash flows on the financial Instrument being valued, determination of the probability of counterparty default and selection of appropriate 
discount rates.

The management regularly reviews significant unobservable Inputs and valuation adjustments.

Fair values are categorized into different levels In a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques. When 
measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure 
the fair value of an asset ora liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its 
entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has 
occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values Is included in the following notes to accounts:
Note 37* Gratuity and Compensated absences
Note 38 ■ Cash-settled • share-based payments
Note 49 - Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management

(C) Significant accounting policies 
1 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably 
measured and there exists reasonable certainty of its recovery.

Interest income

The Company calculates Interest income by using the effective Interest rate (EIR) method.

The effective interest rate method

Interest Income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all financial Instruments measured at amortised cost. The EIR is 
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a 
shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial instrument.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, 
commission, fees and costs incremental and directly attributable to the specific lending arrangement.

The Company recognizes interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the 
expected life of the financial asset. The future cash flows are estimated taking into account all the contractual terms of the asset. If 
expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk. The adjustment is booked as a 
positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest Income. 
The adjustment is subsequently amortized through Interest income in the statement of profit and loss.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, the Company calculates interest income by applying the 
effective interest rate to the net carrying value of the financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the 
Company reverts to calculating interest Income on a gross basis.



Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 
31 March 2022

Interest income on financial assets classified as FVTPL is recognized at contractual interest rate of financial instruments.

Penal/additional interest on default in payment of dues by customer is recognized on realization basis.

Fee Income
Loan processing fee/document fees/stamp fees which are an Integral part of financial assets are recognized through effective interest rate 
over the term of the loan. For the agreements foreclosed or transferred through assignment, the unamortized portion of the fee is 
recognized as income to the Statement of profit and loss at the time of such foreclosure/transfer through the assignment. Applications fee is 
recognized at the commencement of the contracts. Additional charges such as penal, dishonour, foreclosure charges, delayed payment 
charges etc. are recognized on a realization basis. Fees and charges are recognised as income only when revenue is virtually certain which 
generally coincides with receipts.

Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognized as and when the right to receive payment is established.

Net gain and losses from financial Instruments at FVTPL
The realised gain from financial Instruments at FVTPL represents the difference between the carrying amount of a financial instrument at the 
beginning of the reporting period, or the transaction price if it was purchased in the current reporting period, and Its settlement price.

The unrealised gain represents the difference between the carrying amount of a financial instrument at the beginning of the period, or the 
transaction price if It was purchased in the current reporting period, and its carrying amount at the end of the reporting period.

Rendering of services
The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model as set out in Ind AS 115 to determine when to 
recognize revenue and at what amount.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in the contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third 
parties. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when services are provided and it is highly probable that a significant reversal 
of revenue is not expected to occur.

If the consideration promised in a contract includes a variable amount, an entity estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be 
entitled in exchange for rendering the promised services to a customer. An amount of consideration can vary because of discounts, rebates, 
refunds, credits, price concessions, incentives, performance bonuses, or other similar items. The promised consideration can also vary if an 
entitlement to the consideration is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of a future event.

Commission Income
Commission income earned for the services rendered is recognized on an accrual basis, while rate conversion charges are recognized upfront 
based on event occurrence.

Other Income
Other income represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is recognised when the right to receive the income 
is established as per the terms of the contract.

Financial Instruments2

Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets and liabilities are recognsied when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the Instrument. Financial 
assets and liabilities are initially recognised at fair value on a trade date basis, Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial assets or financial liability. Transaction costs of 
financial instrument carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Classification and subsequent measurement
The Company assesses the classification and measurement of a financial asset based on the contractual cashflow characteristics of the asset 
and the Company's business model for managing the asset.

Financial assets (other than equity)
The company subsequently classifies Its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 

-amortised cost;
- fair value through profit or loss
-fair value through other comprehensive income

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cashflows. 
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business 
model for managing financial assets.



Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 
31 March 2022

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method if It meets both of the following conditions: 
- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and 
-The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Equity Instruments

On initial recognition of an equity Investment that is not held for trading, the Company may Irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes 
in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made an investment - by - investment basis.

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, unless the Company's management has 
elected to classify irrevocably some of its equity investments as equity instruments at FVOCI, when such instruments meet the definition of 
Equity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are 
recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, 
on sale/disposal the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category 
are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this 
best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The information considered Includes:

-the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice;
- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;
-the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks 

are managed
and

-the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectation about future sales 
activity.

At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Company determines whether newly recognized financial assets are part of an existing business 
model or whether they reflect a new business model. The Company make changes to business model in case their Is any change in above 
stated parameters.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and Interest (SPPI)

For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal' Is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on Initial recognition. That principal amount 
may change over the life of the financial assets (e.g. if there are payments of principal) Amount 'Interest' is defined as consideration for the 
time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particulars period of time and for other 
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the contractual terms 
of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of 
contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- Contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
-Terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;
- Prepayment and extension features; and
- Terms that limit the Compan/s claim to cash flows from specified assets.

Contractual cash flows that are SPPI are consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Contractual terms that introduce exposure to risks or 
volatility in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement, such as exposure to changes in equity prices or 
commodity prices, do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are SPPI.

A prepayment feature Is consistent with the sole payments of principal and Interest criterion If the prepayment amount substantially 
represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may Include reasonable additional 
compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its 
contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par 
amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual Interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is 
treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.
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Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL Instruments that do not meet the amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria are measured at FVTPL.
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, Including any interest or 
dividend income, are recognised In the statement of profit or loss.
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value are classified as at FVTPL. The 
Company may make an irrevocable election to present certain equity Investments measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive Income. The Company makes such election on an Instrument-by- 
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and Is Irrevocable. If the Company 
decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, 
excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to 
Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, on sale/disposal the Company may 
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Financial assets at amortised cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The 
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and 
impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets (other than Equity 
Investments) at FVOCI

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling 
financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, 
are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements 
are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income measured using the EIR 
method and impairment losses, if any are recognised In the statement of Profit and Loss. On 
derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to 
'other income' in the statement of Profit and Loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the 
investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Debt and equity instruments that are issued are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the 
contractual arrangement.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity 
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at the amortised cost using the effective Interest method, unless at initial recognition, they 
are classified as fair value through profit and loss. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of 
profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Reclassification

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is 
made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a 
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are 
expected to be infrequent. The Company's management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes 
which are significant to the Compan/s operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively 
from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The 
Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Revised classification Accounting treatmentAmortised cost

Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between 
previous amortized cost and falrvalue is recognised in Statement of 
Profit and Loss.

FVTPLAmortised cost

Falrvalue at reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying 
amount, EIR Is calculated based on the new gross carrying amount,

Amortised costFVTPL

Falrvalue is measured at reclassification date. Difference between 
previous amortised costand fair value is recognised in OCI. No change 
in EIR due to reclassification.

Amortised cost FVTOCI

Falrvalue at reclassification date becomes its new amortised cost 
carrying amount. However, cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted 
against fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had 
always been measured at amortised cost.

Amortised costFVTOCI

Falrvalue at reclassification date becomes its new carrying amount. 
No otheradjustment is required.

FVTOCIFVTPL

Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to Statement of Profit and 
Loss at the reclassification date.

FVTPLFVTOCI
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Derecognition, modification and transfer 
Financial Assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the 
rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction In which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 
asset are transferred.

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or 
otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A modification affects the amount and/or timing of the 
contractual cash flows either immediately or at a future date. In addition, the introduction or adjustment of existing covenants of an existing 
loan would constitute a modification even if these new or adjusted covenants do not yet affect the cash flows immediately but may affect 
the cash flows depending on whether the covenant is or is not met (e.g. a change to the increase in the interest rate that arises when 
covenants are breached).

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it 
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent 
of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the 
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. Continuing involvement 
that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the 
maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Profit/premium arising at the time of assignment of portfolio loans, is recognized as an upfront gain/loss. Interest on retained portion of the 
assigned portfolio is recognized basis Effective Interest Rate. The Service fee received is accounted for based on the terms of the underlying 
deal structure of the transaction.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between:
I) the carrying amount (measured at the date of derecognition) and
II) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expired.
The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are 
substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between 
the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised as profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal 
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.

Impairment and write off

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss 
on the financial assets at amortized cost along with related undrawn commitments and loans sanctioned but not disbursed.

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the commitment, the Company is required to provide a 
loan with pre-specified terms to the customer. Commitment starts from the date of the sanction letter till the amount is fully drawn down by 
the customer.

ECL is recognised for financial assets held under amortised cost, debt instruments measured at FVOCI, and certain loan commitments. Equity 
instruments are not subjected to ECL.

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets, the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit 
risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if 
credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used, if. In a subsequent period, the credit quality of the instrument improves such that 
there is no longer a significant Increase in credit risk since Initial recognition, the Company reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance 
based on 12-month ECL. Lifetime ECL is the expected credit loss resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial 
asset. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the 
reporting date.

o
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Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash 
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows which the 
Company expects to receive) discounted at an approximation to the EIR.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument's 
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of a default occurring over the remaining 
life of the financial instrument.

Based on the above process, the company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described below:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12 month ECL. Stage 1 loans also Include facilities 
where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2 to Stage 1.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown an Increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an allowance for the life time expected 
credit losses. Stage 2 loans also include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3 to Stage
2.

Stage 3: When loans shows significant increase in credit risk and/or are considered credit-impaired, the company records an allowance for 
the life time expected credit losses.

The Company measures ECL on an Individual basis, or on a collective basis for portfolios of loans that share similar economic risk 
characteristics. This expected credit loss is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience 
and adjusted for forward-looking information.

Key elements of ECL computation are outlined below:

• Exposure at Default (EAD) is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking Into account expected changes in the exposure 
after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns 
on committed facilities.

• Probability of default ("PD”) is an estimate of the likelihood that customer will default over a given time horizon. A default may only 
happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously de-recognised and is still in the portfolio. PD is 
calculated based on historical default rate summary of past years using historical analysis.

• Loss given default ("LGD") estimates the normalised loss which Company incurs post customer default. It is computed using historical loss 
and recovery experience. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the Exposure at default ("EAD"),

The Company measures ECL on a collective basis for portfolios of loans that share similar economic risk characteristics. It incorporates all 
information that is relevant including information about past events, current conditions and reasonable forecasts of future events and 
economic conditions at the reporting date.

A more detailed description of the methodology used for ECL is covered in the 'credit risk' section of note no. 49.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses In the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets. ECL impairment 
loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is accounted as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Write off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of 
recovery. This is generally the case when the company determines that the counter party does not have assets or sources of income that 
could generate cash flows to repay the amounts. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities 
in order to comply with the company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Collateral valuation and repossession

To mitigate the credit risk on financial assets, the company seeks to use collateral, where possible as per the board approved credit policy. 
The Company provides fully secured, partially secured and unsecured loans to customers. The parameters relating to acceptability and 
valuation of each type of collateral is a part of the credit policy of the company.

In its normal course of business upon account becoming delinquent, the Company physically repossess properties or other assets in its 
portfolio.Repossession of property(ies) may be initiated under the provisions of the SARFAESI Act, 2002. Repossessed property(ies) is 
disposed of in the manner prescribed in the SARFAESI Act, 2002, to recover outstanding debt

3 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash flow statement comprise of the cash on hand, call deposits and other short term, 
highly liquid securities with an original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are 
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for 
withdrawal and usage.

o
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4 Leases
The Company assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease at the inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

A finance lease is a lease which confers substantially all the risks and rewards of the leased assets on the lessee. An operating lease is a lease 
where substantially all of the risks and rewards of the leased asset remain with the lessor.

As a lessee
The Company has various offices, branches and other premises under non-cancellable various lease arrangements to meet its operational 
business requirements.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date and Is 
discounted using the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments as at commencement date are adjusted for any initial direct 
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which 
it is located, less any lease Incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are measured at their carrying amount at the commencement date and are discounted using the Compan/s incremental 
borrowing rate at the date of initial application. Right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term, The estimated useful 
lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is 
periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

Leases may include options to extend or terminate the lease which is included in the right-of-use Assets and Lease Liability when they are 
reasonably certain of exercise.

The lease liability is remeasured when there Isa change in one of the following:
- future lease payments arising from a change the in inflation rate,
-the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or 
• the Company's assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded 
In the statement of profit and loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to nil.

The company presents rlght-of-use assets and lease liabilities on the face of the Balance sheet.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term
leases of real estate properties that have a lease term of 12 months. The company recognises the lease payments associated with these 
leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The related cash flows are classified as operating activities.

As a lessor:
When the lease is deemed a finance lease, the leased asset is not held on the balance sheet; instead a finance lease receivable is recognized 
representing the lease payments receivable under the terms of the lease, discounted at the rate of interest implicit in the lease.

When the lease is deemed an operating lease, the lease income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless 
another systematic basis is more appropriate. The company holds the leased assets on-balance sheet within property, plant and equipment.

5 Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost is calculated using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) on the amortised cost of the instrument. EIR includes interest and 
amortization of ancillary cost incurred In connection with the borrowing of funds. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the 
period in which they are incurred.

6 Foreign currency

The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (R) which is also the Company's functional currency. Transactions in 
foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first 
qualifies for recognition. Income and expenses in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the exchange rates prevailing 
on the date of the transaction. Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the functional currency spot 
rates of exchange at the reporting date and exchange gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary items that are measured In terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using 
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are 
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Thus, translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equity instruments 
held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non
monetary assets such as equity investments classified as FVOCI are recognised in other comprehensive Income.
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Trade and other payables7

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the company before the end of the financial year which are unpaid. 
Trade and other payables are presented as financial liabilities. They are recognised initially at their fair value, net of transaction costs, and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method where the time value of money is significant.

8 Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax expenses, net change in the deferred tax assets or liabilities during the year and any adjustment 
to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years, Current and deferred taxes are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss, 
except when they relate to business combinations or to an item that is recognised in Other comprehensive income or directly in Equity, in 
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in Other comprehensive income or directly in Equity respectively.

Current Income taxes
The current income tax includes income taxes payable by the Company computed in accordance with the tax laws applicable in the 
jurisdiction in which the Company generate taxable income and does not include any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable In respect 
of previous years.
The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if 
any, related to income taxes. It Is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only If there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is 
intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred Income taxes
Deferred income tax is recognised using Balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for the deductible 
and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of an assets and liabilities and their carrying amount.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:
• temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that 
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;
-taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in 
which the temporary differences are expected to be reversed or settled. Deferred tax asset are recognised to the extent that taxable profit 
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can 
be utilised. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner In which the Company 
expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow part of deferred income tax assets to be utilised. At each reporting date, the company re
assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes unrecognized deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably 
certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable Income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset deferred tax assets and liabilities and the 
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

9 Goods and services tax input credit
Goods and services tax input credit is recognised in the books of account in the period in which the supply of goods or service received is 
recognised and when there Is no uncertainty in availing/utilising the credits.

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax/vaiue-added taxes paid, except:
- When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or receipt of services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax 

paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.
-When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance 
sheet.

Property plant and equipment (Including Capital Work-In-Progress) and Intangible assets

PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the 
item can be measured reliably.

Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any.

10

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price(after deducting trade discounts and rebates) including import 
duties and non-refundable taxes, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and 
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it Is located.

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and 
accumulated impairment losses, If any.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the 
Company. All other expenditure is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.
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Depredatfon/Amortlsation
Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis as per the estimated useful life of the assets as 
determined by the management, which is in line with Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 except for certain assets as stated below.

Useful life estimated by the 
Company 
(In years)

Useful life as per Schedule II 
(in years)

Computer Server and Other Accessories * 4 6
Computer Desktop and Laptops * 3 3
Furniture and Fixtures * 5 10
Office Equipment's * 5 S
Handheld devices * 2 5
Vehicles * 4 8

•Useful life of the assets has been assessed based on internal assessment, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage 
of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and 
maintenance support, etc.

Depreciation/Amortization method, useful life and residual value are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if required. 
Depreciation/Amortization on addition/disposable is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e from/upto the date on which asset is ready to use 
/disposed off except assets valued less than ^ 5000. Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation 
period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. All assets costing utpo ^ 5000 are depreciated fully 
in the year of capitalization.

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of the lease subject to a maximum lease period of 66 months.

Intangible assets are amortized using the straight line method over a period of five years commencing from the date on which such asset is 
first Installed.

Derecognition

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or retirement of the asset and the 
resultant gains or losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Assets to be disposed off are reported at the lower of the 
carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell.

11 Impairment on Non Financials Assets

The carrying amount of the non-financial assets other than deferred tax are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any Indication of 
impairment based on internal /external factors. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that 
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets is 
considered as a cash generating unit.

The Company reviews at each reporting date, whether there Is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. A previously 
recognised impairment loss is Increased or reversed depending on changes In circumstances. However, the carrying value after reversal is 
not increased beyond the carrying value that would have prevailed by charging usual depreciation / amortisation if there were no 
impairment.

If any indication of impairment exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the individual asset/cash generating unit is made, The 
recoverable amount of the assets/ Cash generating unit is estimated as the higher of net selling price and its value in use. Asset/cash 
generating unit whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount is written down to the recoverable amount by recognising the 
impairment loss as an expense In the Statement of Profit and Loss. After impairment, depreciation / amortisation is provided on the revised 
carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

12 Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid In exchange for the services rendered by employees are 
recognised during the year when the employees render the service. These benefits include performance incentive and compensated 
absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined Contribution Plans

Contributions to defined contribution schemes includes employees' state insurance, superannuation scheme, employee pension scheme. A 
defined contribution plan Is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into an account with a 
separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified periodic contributions to 
the credit of the employees' account with the Employees' Provident Fund Organisation. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution 
plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the periods during which the related services are 
rendered by employees..
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Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company's net obligation in respect of 
defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, 
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of the defined benefit obligation Is performed periodically by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. 
When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits 
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan ('the asset ceiling'). In order to 
calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the returnon plan assets (excluding interest) 
and the effect of the asset celling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The Company 
determines the net interest expense /income on the net defined benefit liability/asset for the period by applying the discount rate used to 
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then net defined benefit liability/asset, taking into 
account any changes in the net defined benefit liability /asset during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net 
interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service ('past service 
cost' or 'past service gain') or the gain or loss on curtailment Is recognised Immediately in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The Company 
recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

In case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit plans to recognise the 
obligation on a net basis

Other long term employee benefits

The Compan/s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment benefits, which do not fall due wholly 
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related services, is the amount of future benefit that 
employees have earned In return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, 
and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The obligation is measured on the basis of an independent actuarial valuation using the 
projected unit credit method. Remeasurements gains or losses are recognised as profit or loss in the period In which they arise.

Share Based Payment (Stock Appreciation Rights)

For cash-settled share based payments, the fair value of the amount payable to employees is recognised as 'employee benefit expenses' 
with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the vesting period on straight line basis. The liability is re-measured at each reporting period 
up to, and including the settlement date, with changes in fair value recognised in employee benefits expenses. Refer Note 38 for details.

13 Provisions (other than for employee benefits), contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be 
made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the 
reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non- 
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company ora present obligation that is not recognized because 
it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare 
cases where there Is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a 
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, it is disclosed only when an inflow of economic 
benefits is highly probable.

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has inherent litigation risk to Its operations and in the ordinary 
course of the Company's business. Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company 
takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence from similar incidents.

Provisions, contingent assets, contingent liabilities and commitments are reviewed at each reporting date.

Commitments
Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as follows:
a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for;
b) Other non-cancellable commitments, if any.

<?O
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14 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing profit after tax (excluding other comprehensive income) attributable to the equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing profit after tax (excluding other comprehensive income) attributable to the equity 
shareholders as adjusted for dividend. Interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the 
weighted average number of shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares 
which could have been issued on conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if 
their conversion to equity shares would decrease the profit per share.

Operating Segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker 
(CODM). The CODM's function is to allocate the resources of the Company and assess the performance of the operating segments of the 
Company.

15

16 Dividend on equity shares

The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution Is authorized and the distribution is no 
longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorized when it is approved by the 
shareholders except in case of Interim dividend. A corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity.

17 Trade receivables

These amounts represent receivable for goods and services provided by the company. Trade receivables are presented as financial asset. 
They are measured at amortised cost less any impairment loss. An allowance for Impairment of trade receivable Is established If the 
collection of the receivable becomes doubtful.

(0) Recent accounting developments

On 23 March 2022, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through notifications, amended to existing Ind AS. The same shall come into 
force from annual reporting period beginning on or after 1st April 2022. Key Amendments relating to the same whose financial statements 
are required to comply with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 201S are:

Summary of amendmentsStandard / amendments
For items produced during tcsting/trail phase, clarification added that revenue generated out of the 
same shall not be recognised in SOPl and conslderedas part of cost of PPE.

Ind AS 16 Property, Riant and 
Equipment
Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent 
Liabilities & Contingent Assets

Guidance on what constitutes cost of fulfilling contracts (to determine whether the contract is onerous or 
not) is included.

This aligns the fair value measurement in Ind AS 41 with the requirements of Ind AS 113 Fair Value 
Measurement to use internally consistent cash flows and discount rates and enables preparers to 
determine whether to use pre-tax or post-tax cash flows and discount rates for the most appropriate fair 
value measurement.

Ind AS 41 Agriculture

Ind AS 101 -First time Adoption of 
Ind AS

Measurement of Foreign Currency Translation Difference in case of subsidiary/associate/ JV's date of 
transition to Ind AS Is subsequent to that of Parent-FCTR In the books of subsidiary/associate/JV can be 
measured based Consolidated Financial Statements.

Reference to revised Conceptual Framework. For contingent liabilities / levies, clarification is added on 
howto apply the principles for recognition of contingent liabilities from Ind AS 37. Recognition of 
contingent assets is not allowed.

ind AS 103 - Business
Combination

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 per cent' test In assessing 
whether to derecognise a financial liability.

Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments
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Cash and cash equivalents2

As at
31 March 2022 

lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

(t lakhs)
Particulars

Cash on hand 
Balances with banks
- in current accounts
- in fixed deposit with original maturity less than 3 months 
Cheques, drafts on hand

68 49

3,295 2,668
4,1011

316
Total 3,680 6,818

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents3

As at
31 March 2022 

(K lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

«lakhs)
Particulars

In Deposits accounts - with original maturity of more than 3 months* 39,955 59,566
Total 39,955 59,566
'Includes deposit with bank kept as lien or guarantee as detailed below:
1) Deposits amounting to ^25 lakhs (31 March 2021: X 25 lakhs) pertain to collateral deposits towards recovery expense fund (REF) with NSE in the Interest of investors.
2) All secured NCOS issued by the Company are secured by first pari-passu charge on the Company’s Immovable property at Chennai and by hypothecation of book debts / loan receivables and by fixed 
deposit with the banks to the extent of shortfall in asset cover as mentioned in respective information memorandum. Fixed deposits place as security cover as 31 March 2022 are ^ Nil (As at 31 March 
2021: *36,808 lakhs)

4 investments

As at
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)
Particulars

Measured at fair value through profit and loss 
Quoted: Government securities 

Nil (31 March 2021: 10,000,000 ) units 0% INR GOITB 2021/182 
Nil (31 March 2021: 5,000,000 ) units 0% INR GOI TB 2021/182 
2,500,000 (31 March 2021: NIL) units 0% INR GOI TB 2022/364

9,869
4,949

2,499

Unquoted: Certificate of deposits
Nil (31 March 2021:7,500) units of Rs. 100,000 each of SIDBI 
Ni!(31 March 2021:1,500) units of Rs. 100,000 each of NABARD 
Nil(31 March 2021:7,500) units of Rs. 100,000 each of INDUSIND Bank

7,186
1,462
7,284

Total 2,499 30,750
investments within India 
investments Outside India

2,499 30,750

5 Trade receivables

As at
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)
Particulars

Receivables considered good - Unsecured 
Less: Provision for impairment * 51 68

Total 51
No trade receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Also, no trade or other receivables are due from firms or private 
companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.
'There are no receivables conisdered as doubtful.

(A) Trade Receivables aging schedule as on 31 March 2022 |* In lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction

Less than 6 
months

6 months • 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years

Particulars Unbilled Dues
Totalyear

(I) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 51 51
(il) Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered doubtful
(111) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good
Iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful

(B) Trade Receivables aging schedule as on 31 March 2021 (* In lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction

Less than 6 
months

6 months -1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years

Particulars Unbilled Dues
Totalyear

68 68(I) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good
(li) Undisputed Trade Receivables-considered doubtful
(III) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good
iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful
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6 Loans

As at
31 March 2022 

lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

«lakhs)
Particulars

Loans carried amortised cost
(I) Loans repayable on Demand
(II) Loans* 4,17,268 3,86,345
Gross loans 4,17,268 3,86,345
Less- Impairment allowance (24,217) (20,859)
Net loans and advances 3,93,051 3,65,486
(I) Secured by tangible assets 
(li)Secured by intangible assets
(iii) Covered by Bank/Govemment Guarantees **
(iv) Unsecured

4,15,613 3,84,153

1,655 2,192

Gross loans 4,17,268 3,86,345
Less: Impairment loss allowance (24,217) (20,859)
Net loans 3,93,051 3,65,486
• Note:
1) All the loans are disbursed in India and there are no loans Issued to public sector.
2) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, to promoters, Directors, KMPs and related parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly 
with any other person, that are either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year.
** Represents loans under Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme.

Other financial assets7

As at
31 March 2022 

H lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)
Particulars

Security Deposits - Considered Good and Unsecured
Interest Accrued on investment
Receivable from Government of India for exgratia claim
Interest strip asset on assignment
Others

117 100
104
475

2,424 3,188
284 234

Total 2,825 4,101

8 Current tax assets

As at
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

(■t lakhs)
Particulars

Advance tax (net of provision) 1,350 621
Total 1,350 621

9 Deferred tax assets (net)

As at
31 March 2022 

lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

ft lakhs)
Particulars

Deferred tax asset arising on account of:
Impact of expenditure charged to profit and loss but allowed for tax purposes on payment basis 
Timing difference between book depreciation and Income Tax Act, 1961 
Provision for expected credit loss on financial assets
Processing fees and loan origination charges adjustment related to financial assets at amortized cost 
Provision for expenses disallowed as per Income-tax Act, 1961 
On account of lease liabilities

109
97 71

6,016 5,206
321 420
405 151
526 461

Total deferred tax assets (A) 7,453 6,418
Deferred tax liability arising on account of:
On account of right to use asset
Borrowing cost adjustment related to financial liabilities at amortized cost
Special Reserve created as per section 29Cof NHB Act, 1987 and claimed as deduction u/s36 (1) (viii) of income Tax Act, 1961

472 419
208 233
213 128

Total deferred tax liabilities (8) 893 780
Deferred tax assets (net) (A-B) 6,560 5,638

Other non-flnandal assets10

As at
31 March 2022 

ft lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

ft lakhs)
Particulars

Goods and service tax recoverable
Prepayments
Capital advances
Others

152 143
336 268

5
164169

662Total 575

O O

& *
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11 Property, plant and equipment (Amount In * lakhs)

Office
Equipments

Furniture & 
Fixtures

Computers & 
Accessories

Leasehold
Improvements

Land&
Building*

Particulars Vehicles Total

Gross block
Balance as at 31 March 2020
Additions
Deletions

141 487 360 320 S9 6 1,373
2 2 2 6 12

(10) (49) Jgl (18) (45) (131)
Balance as at 31 March 2021
Additions
Deletions
Transfer to right to use of asset

133 440 351 304 20 6 1,255
2 12 16 12 42

(0) (5) (1) (8) (14)

Balance as at 31 March 2022 135 447 366 316 12 6 1,282
Accumulated depreciation 
Balance as at 31 March 2020 
Depreciation charge 
Deletions

45 158 213 107 30 554
35 121 87 60 14 317
J£1 (21), JS) J6} (36) (72)

Balance as at 31 March 2021 
Depredation charge 
Deletions
Transfer to right to use of asset

76 258 295 161 8 798
27 86 46 52 4 216
(0) (4) (1) 15) (10)

Balance as at 31 March 2022 103 340 340 213 7 1,004
Net block
Balance as at 31 March 2021 
Balance as at 31 March 2022

57 182 56 143 11 6 456
32 107 26 103 5 6 278

* Pledged as security against secured non convertible debenture 
Note:
1) As per management assessment there are no probable scenario in which the recoverable amount of asset would decrease below the carrying amount of asset. Consequently no impairment 
required.
2) The title deeds, comprising all the Immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed In favour of the lessee) dassified as 
Property Plant and Equipment, are held in the name of the Company.

Right of use assets12

As at
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)
Particulars

Right of use assets ( Refer Note 42) 1,858 1,646
Total 1,858 1,646

Other intangibles assets (Amount In R lakhs)13

Computer
Software

TotalParticulars

Gross block
Balance as at 31 March 2020
Additions
Deletions

225225
79 79

Balance as at 31 March 2021
Additions
Deletions

304304
36 36

Balance as at 31 March 2022 340 340
Amortisation
Balance as at 31 March 2020
Amortisation 
Deletions 

53 S3
5454

Balance as at 31 March 2021
Amortisation
Deletions

107 107
63 63

Balance as at 31 March 2022 170 170
Net block
Balance as at 31 March 2021 
Balance as at 31 March 2022

197 197
170 170

Intangibles under development 
(Amount In 4 lakhs)13 Computer

Software Total
Balance as at 31 March 2021 
Balance as at 31 March 2022 1111

Ageing of Intangibles under development
As on 31 March 2021As on 31 March 2022

TotalAmount in CWIP for a period ofAmount In CWIP for a period of Total
More than 3 
years

More than 3 
years Less than lyear 1-2 years 2-3 years2-3 yearsLess than lyear 1-2 yearsCWIP

Projects in 
progress* 1111

Projects temporarily
suspended
•Completion is not over due and not exceeded with its cost as compare to its original plan of Intangible asset under development.

Trade payables14

As at
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)

As at
31 March 2022 

H lakhs)
Particulars

3687Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 44 for dues to Micro, Small and Medium enterprise)
Dues to creditors other than micro enterprisesand small enterprises 266 260

297353Total

N* C.h

O

*
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(A) Trade Payable aging schedule as on 31 March 2022
Outstanding for following periods from transaction

Particulars Unbilled dues Less than l 
year

More than 3l-2years 2-3 years
Totalyears

(1) MSME 87 87
(il) Others 262 4 266
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME
(iv)Dlsputed dues - Others

(B) Trade Payable aging schedule as on 31 March 2021
Outstanding for following periods from transaction

Particulars Unbilled dues Less than 1 More than 3 
years

l-2years 2-3 years
Totalyear

(I) MSME 36 36
(il) Others 260 260
(IN) Disputed dues - MSME
(iv)Disputed dues - Others

15 Debt Securities

As at
31 March 2022 

«lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

lakhs)

Particulars

At amortised cost
Non convertible debentures (secured)* 98,285 1,00,186
Total 98,285

98,285
1,00,186

Debt Securities within India
Debt Securities Outside India

1,00,186

•All secured NCDs issued by the Company are secured by first pari-passu charge on the Company's immovable property at Chennai and by hypothecation of book debts / loan receivables and by fixed 
deposit with the banks to the extent of shortfall In asset cover as mentioned in respective information memorandum.

The funds raised by the Company during the year by issue of Secured Non Convertible Debentures were utilised for the purpose Intended, i.e. towards lending, financing, to refinance the existing 
indebtedness of the Company or for long-term working capital, in compliance with applicable laws.

16 Subordinated liabilities
As at

31 March 2022 
{* lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)

Particulars

At amortised cost
Non convertible debentures (unsecured)* 9,776 7,218
Total 9,776 7,218
Subordinated liabilities within India
Subordinated liabilities Outside India

9,776 7,218

•The funds raised by the Company during the year by issue of Subordinated liabilities were utilised for the purpose intended, i.e. towards lending, financing, to refinance the existing Indebtedness of 
the Company or for long-term working capital, in compliance with applicable laws.
Borrowings17

As at
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)
Particulars

At amortised cost
Term loans from bank (secured)* 
Cash Credit from bank(Secured)
Other Loans
Commercial papers (unsecured) tt

2,57,890 2,79,062
41

7,160
Total 2,57,890 2,86,263
Borrowings within India 
Borrowings Outside India

2,57,890 2,86,263

(a) Nature of securities and terms of repayment for borrowings

•Indian rupee loan from banks are secured by first pari passu charge over all loan receivables. Term loan from bank include borrowing from National Housing Bank amounting to ^ NIL lakhs (31 
March 2021: * 5,000 lakhs) that are secured by way of specific charge on loan receivables.
The funds raised by the Company during the year from Borrowings were utilised for the purpose intended, i.e. towards lending, financing, to refinance the existing indebtedness of the Company or for 
long-term working capital, in compliance with applicable laws.

# Commercial paper carries interest in the range of 0% (31 March 2021:5 to 6% p.a.) and tenure of 0 days (31 March 2021:90 to 365 days)fully payable at maturity. The Interest rate is on XIRR basis.

Net debt reconciliation4»)
As at

31 March 2021 
(* lakhs)

As at
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)
Particulars

2,57,890
1,08,061

(3,680)

2,86,263
1,07,403

(6,818)

Borrowings
Debt securities (including Subordinated liabilities) 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

3,86,8483,62,271Net Debt

(Amount In R lakhs)

Debt securities (including 
Subordinated liabilities)BorrowingsParticulars

89,401
16,500
1,502

2,80,342
6,120
(199)

Balance as at 31 March 2020
Cashflows (net)
Others*
Balance as at 31 March 2021
Cashflows (net)
Others*

1,07,403
4,900

(4,242)

2,86,263
(28,845)

471
1,08,0612,57,889Balance as at 31 March 2022

•Others includes the effect of accrued but not paid interest on borrowing, amortisation of processing fees etc.
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Details of terms of contractual principal redemption/repayment In respect of debt securities and borrowingI)

(A) Debt securities as on 31 March 2022

Due within 1 More than 3 
Years

TotalOriginal maturity of loan 
(in no. of days)

Duel to 2 Years Due 2 to 3 YearsRate of Interest year
t lakhs * lakhs R lakhs R lakhs k lakhs

Debt Issued at par and redeemable at par
05%-07% 10,000 12,500 22,5002-3 years
07%-08% 27,500 27,500

3-4 years 05%-07% 10,000 10,000
08%-09% 4,000 6,800 12,100 22,900More than 4 years
09%-11% 2,500 2,500

3-4 years 05%-07% 9,900 9,900
Total 14,000 46,800 32,000 2,500 95,300

(B) Subordinated Debt as on 31 March 2022

Due within 1 More than 3 
Years

Original maturity of loan 
(In no. of days)

TotalDue 1 to 2 Years Due 2 to 3 YearsRate of interest year
* lakhs k lakhs R lakhs T lakhs * lakhs

Debt Issued at par and redeemable at par
07%-08% 6,500 6,500More than 4 years
08%-09% 3,000 3,000

Total 9,500 9,500

(C) Debt securities as on 31 March 2021

Due within 1 More than 3 
Years

Original maturity of loan 
(in no. of days)

Duel to 2 Years Due 2 to 3 Years TotalRate of interest year
j lakhs t lakhs T lakhs T lakhs ^ lakhs

issued at par and redeemable at par
05%-07% 10,000 12,500 22,5002-3 years
07% - 08% 27,500 27,500
08% - 09% 10,000 10,0003-4 years
09%-11% 7,500 7,500
07% - 08% 4,000 4,000

More than 4 years 08% - 09% 4,000 6,800 15,100 25,900
09% -11% 2,500 2,500

Total 17,500 14,000 46,800 21,600 99,900

(D) Subordinated Debt as on 31 March 2021
Due within 1 More than 3 

Years
Original maturity of loan 
(In no. of days)

Duel to 2 Years Due 2 to 3 Years TotalRate of interest year
< lakhs T lakhs R lakhs * lakhs T lakhs

Issued at par and redeemable at par
07%- 08% 4,000 4,000More than 4 years
08% - 09% 3,000 3,000

Total 7,000 7,000

(E) Borrowings as on 31 March 2022

Original maturity of 
loan

(In no. of days)

Due within 1 year Duel to 2 YearsRate of Interest* Due 2 to 3 Years More than 3 Years Total
No. of 

Installments
No. of 

installments
No. of 

Installments
No. of 

Installments
T lakhs T lakhs T lakhs * lakhs * lakhs

Monthly repayment schedule
More than 4 years | 05% - 07% | 361 3.214 I 361 3,214 j m 3,214~[ 481 3.339 I 12,981
Quarterly repayment schedule
3-4 years 07% - 08% 8 8,750 8 8,750 4 3,750 21,250
More than 4 years 07%-08% 48 22,159 41 17,587 7 4,583 7 6,875 51,204
Hatf yearty repayment schedule
1-2 years 07%-08% 2 2,500 2,500
2-3 years 07%-08% 1 5,000 5,000

05%-07% 4 2,000 4 2,000 4 2,000 3 1,500 7,5003-4 years
07%-08% 3 10,000 3 7,500 3 2,500 20,000
07% - 08% 32 23,062 31 25,354 21 16,979 25 18,870 84,265More than 4 years
08% - 09% 31 19,931 21 18,931 9 14,444 53,306

Total 162 86,616 144 85,836 84 52,470 86 33,084 2,58,006
* All borrowings from banks are floating in nature
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(F) Borrowings as on 31 March 2021

More than 3 YearsDue within 1 year Duel to 2 Years Due 2 to 3 YearsOriginal maturity of 
loan

(In no. of days)

TotalRate of interest*

No. of 
installments

No. of 
Installments

No. of
Installments

No. of 
Installments

R lakhs R lakhsY lakhs R lakhsR lakhs

Monthly repayment schedule
More than 4 years \ 07W - 08% I liT 3.214 | 1ST 3,214 | IST 3.214 | 6.554 | 16,196
Quarterly repayment schedule
1-2 years 07W-08% 2 1,250 1,250
2-3 years 07W-08K 1,2502 1,250
3-4 years 2,500 2,500 2 1,250 6,25007W-08X 4 4

0794- 08% 20 7,333 22,194 42 19,694 8,958 58,16144 ISMore than 4 years
0894-0994 8 3,714 12 7,048 7 4,976 5 4,167 19,905

Half yearly repayment schedule
3-4 years 0794-0894 1 1,000 2 2,000 2 2,000 5,000

0794-0894 49 30,347 39,125 SO 39,625 35 28,91757 1,38,014
More than 4 years 0894-0994 6 7,361 6 7,361 5 6,111 3 4,306 25,139

0694-0794 4 1,250 4 1,250 2 625 3,125
Bullet repayment schedule
Upto 1 year 0794-0894 5,0412 5,041
Total 129 60,760 164 83,692 148 78,745 150 56,152 2,79,350
* All borrowings from banks are floating In nature
Particulars of Secured Redeemable Non-convertible Debentures:Ha)

As at
31 March 2022 

(S lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

(4 lakhs)

Face Value 
(4 lakhs)

Particulars Date of RedemptionQuantity

8.4894 Series-?
9.294 Series-8 
8.0594 Series-2 
7.9594 Series-13 
8.7594 Serles-6
7.294 Series-14
FRB (linked to 3 Months T-BIHs plus spread of 2.2594} Scrics-16 
S.5094Scrles-15
FRB (linked to 3 month T-bills plus spread of 2.25 94) Series 17 
FRB (linked to 3 month T-bllls plus spread of 2.25 94) Series-17 Reissuance I 
8.6594 Series-12 
9,2594 Series-9

10 1,000 April 20,2021 
July 28,2021 

March 24,2023 
May 18,2023 
May 28,2023 
June 29,2023 

September 26,2023 
October 14,2022 

December 13,2024 
December 13,2024 

February 9,2025 
August 8,2025

10,000
7,500
4,000

17.500 
6,800

10,000
12.500 
10,000

10 750
10 400 4,000

17.500 
6,800

10,000
12.500 
10,000 
10,000
9,900

12,100
2,500

10 1,750
10
10 1,000

1,250
1,000
1,000

10
10
10
10 990
10 1,210 12,100

2,50010 250
Total 95,300 92,900

Hb) Particulars of Unsecured Non-convertible Debentures;
Aset

31 March 2022 
(4 lakhs)

As atFace Value 
(4 lakhs)

Particulars Date of RedemptionQuantity 31 March 2021 
(4 lakhs)

8.594 Sub-dobt-1
7.6394 Sub-debt-2 
7.794 Sub-debt-3

10 300 June 7,2030 
January 1,2031 
August 12. 2031

3,000
4,000
2.500
9.500

3,000
4,00010 400

100 25
Total 7,000

18 Other financial liabilities

As at
31 March 2022 

(4 lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

(4 lakhs)

Particulars

Employee benefits and other payables 
Book overdrait*
Payable towards asset assignment 
Lease liabilities 
Others **

1,146
8,218
1,369
2,079
3,975

913
7,374
1,227
1331
3,060

14,405Total 16,787
'Book overdraft represents cheque issued towards disbursement to borrowers but not presented to banks as on March 31,2022.

Others Includes expense accruals amounting to 4 2,436 lakhs (As at 31 March 202141,426 lakhs)

19 Provisions

As at
31 March 2022 

(4 lakhs)

Asst
31 March 2021 

(4 lakhs)

Particulars

Provision for compensated absences (Refer Note 37C) 
Provision for defined benefit plans (Refer Note 37C) 
Provision for code on social security (Refer Note 37.1) 
Provision for future litigation [Refer Note 19.11

105 80
20517

264
500 260

Total 545

Note 19,1. Provision far future litigation
As at

31 March 2022 
(4 lakhs)

As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 

(4 lakhs)
260 156Opening

Addition
Reduction
Closing

240 104

500 260

Other non-flnandal liabilities20

As at
31 March 2022 

(4 lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

(4 lakhs)
Particulars

165 142Statutory dues 
Prepayments from Borrower 
Others

1,265 571
288 762

1,718 1,475Total
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Equity share capital21

As at
31 March 2022 

K lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

lakhs)
Particulars

1,50,000 1,50,000Authorised Equity shares Capital
1,500,000,000 (31 March 2021:1,500,000,000) equity shares of * 10 each
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
308,033,193 (31 March 2021:308,033,193) Equity shares of ^ 10 each fully paid

30,803 30,803

Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period(a)

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Particulars Number of 

shares
Number of 

shares
Amount 
Ft lakhs)

Amount 
(R lakhs)

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Add :Shares Issued during the year

30,80,33,193 30,803 30,80,33,193 30,803

Balance at the end of the year 30,80,33,193 30,803 30,80,33,193 30,803

(b) Terms/right attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ^ 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

Any Dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Dividend is declared and paid In Indian rupees.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all the preferential amounts. The distribution 
will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Shares held by holding company

Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by Its holding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries/associates are as below:

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Particulars Number of 

shares
Amount 
«lakhs)

Number of 
shares

Amount
lakhs)

Fullerton India Credit Company Limited, the holding company and Its nominees 
308,033,193 (31 March 2021:308,033,193) equity shares of * 10 each fully paid)

30,80,33,193 30,803 30,80,33,193 30,803

(d) Shareholders holding more than 5% of the shares in the Company

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Particulars Number of 

shares
% Number of 

shares
%

of holding of holding
Fullerton India Credit Company Limited, the holding company and Its nominees 30,80,33,193 100.0% 30,80,33,193 100.0%

(e) The Company has not issued any bonus shares or shares for consideration other than cash nor has there been any buyback of shares during five years immediately preceding 31 March 2022.

22 Other equity

As at
31 March 2022 

lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

lakhs)

Particulars

Capital Reserve
Securities premium
Reserve Fund under Section 29C(i) of the NHB Act, 1987 
Items of other comprehensive income 
Surplusln the statement of profit and loss

10 10
40,186 40,186

847 509
(20)14

(4,605) (5,954)
34,731Total 36,452

(Refer Statement of Change In Equity for the year ended 31st March 2022 for movement In Other Equity)

Nature and purpose of reserves 
Capital Reserve
Capital Reserve Is created on account of reversal of debenture issue costs charged to securities premium under previous GAAP. The same shall be utilised as per the provlsionsof Companies Act, 2013.

(i)

(M) Securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on Issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iii) Reserve Fund under Section 29C(I) of the NHB Act, 1987
The Company is required to create a fund by transferring not less than 20% its net profit every year as disclosed in the statement of profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared. The fund 
shall be utilised for the purpose as may be specified by the National Housing Bank from time to time and every such appropriation shall be reported to the National Housing Bank within 21 days from 
the date of such withdrawal.

(iv) Retained Earning & Surplus In the statement of profit and loss
Retained earning are profit that the company has earned to date, less any dividend or other distributions paid to the shareholders, net of utillasation as permitted under applicable law.
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23 Interest Income

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

lakhs)
Particulars

On Financial assets measured at amortised cost 
Loans *
Deposits with banks

On Financial assets measured at Fair value thorugh Profit and Loss(FVTPL) 
Investments

45,033
2,846

47,625
2,070

484 1,318
Total 48,363 51,013
*ln accordance with RBI notification dated April 7, 2021, the Company is required to refund/adjust 'interest on interest' to eligible borrowers. As required by the RBI notification, 
the methodology for calculation of such interest on interest has been circulated by the Indian Banks' Association. The Company had processed and refunded/adjusted interest 
relief amounting^ Nil ( Year ended 31 March 2021: ^ 154 lakhs ) to and reduced the same from the interest income.

24 Fees and commission income

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)
Particulars

Fees and commission income (Refer Note 47) 710 500
Total 710 500

25 Net gain on fair value changes

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)
Particulars

On financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss 
Realised Gain 15 42
Unrealised Gain
Total 15 42

26 Ancillary income

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(t lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)

Particulars

Other fee income 192 60
Total 192 60

27 Other income

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

ft lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

ft lakhs)

Particulars

Profit on derecognition of property plant and equiptment (net) 
Interest on Security Deposits 
Miscellaneous income

2
15 8

492 188
Total 509 196

28 Finance costs

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

ft lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

ft lakhs)
Particulars

On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 
Borrowings 
Debt securities

Interest expense on lease rental liabilities 
Bank charges and others

19,681
7,100

21,450
9,041

166 119
379 480

Total 27,326 31,090

29 Net loss on fair value changes

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

ft lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

ft lakhs)
Particulars

On financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss 1

1Total
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30 Impairment on financial instruments

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

[K lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)
Particulars

On Financial assets measured at amortised cost 
Bad debts and Write off (net of recovery) 
Expected credit loss on loans

3,359
3,358

7,444
10,604

6,717 18,048Total
•Bad debts and write offs offset by recovery of ^1,217 lakhs (FY 2021: *1,602 lakhs)

31 Employee benefits expense

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)
Particulars

Salaries, bonus and allowances 
Share based payment to employee's and director's 
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 37) 
Provision for code on social security (refer note 37.1) 
Staff welfare and training expenses

7,552 6,505
(71)347

430 354
264
306 319

Total 8,899 7,107

32 Other expenses

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)
Particulars

Printing and stationery 
Rent,Rates and taxes 
Legal charges 
Professional charges 
Collection expenses 
Courier charges 
Repairs and maintenance 

Office premises 
Others

Directors'sitting fees 
Travelling expenses 
Telecommunication expenses 
Payment to auditor (refer details below)
Electricity charges 
Security charges 
Recruitment expenses 
Fees and subscription
Corporate social responsibility expenses as per section 135 (5) of Companies Act, 2013 (Refer note 45) 
Miscellaneous expenses
Write off of Property, plant & equipment and intangible assets

63 34
48 42

439 479
1,462 990

226 6
23 13

99 91
1 0

30 24
249 124

63 90
33 26
76 76
30 51
36 15
32 6

14
1,609 928

1 25
Total 4,520 3,033
Professional fees payable to auditors
Statutory Audit fee 
Limited review 
Tax Audit fee 
Certification matter 
Reimbursement of expenses

14 13
4 3
4 3

10 6
1 1

33 26

33 Tax expense

(a) Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)
Particulars

Current tax for the year 
Current tax expense (A) 
Deferred taxes for the year 
Change in deferred tax assets 
Change in deferred tax liabilities 
Net deferred tax expense (B)

1,497 843
1,497 843

(1,035) (2,675)
(25)113

(922) (2,700)
Total income tax expense (A+B) (1,857)575

o

£ *
*



Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 
31 March 2022

(b) Amount recognised in Other comprehensive Income

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

lakhs)
Particulars

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefit obligations 
Income tax relating to above

(5)45
(11) 1

Total 34

(c) Tax reconciliation (for profit and loss)

The tax charge shown in the statement of profit and loss differs from the tax charge that would apply if all profits had been charged at India corporate tax rate. A 
reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 is, as follows:

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

({lakhs)
Particulars

Net profit / (loss) before OCI as per PL 
Income tax <® Statutory Tax Rate of 25.17%
Tax effects of:
Items which are taxed at different rates
Net expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 
Recognition of previously unrecognised temporary differences

(7,408)
(1,864)

2,261
570

6 8
0

Income tax expenses reported In PL (1,857)575
Tax Rate Effective* 25.44% 25.06%

Significant components and movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities

Recognised In 
Profit and loss

As at
31 March 2021

Recognised in Recognised in 
equity

As at
31 March 2022Particulars OCI

On account of right to use asset
Borrowing cost adjustment related to financial liabilities at amortized cost

419 53 472
(25)233 208

Special Reserve created as per section 29C of NHB Act, 1987 and claimed 
as deduction u/s 36 (1) (viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961

128 85 213

Deferred Tax liability (A) 780 113 893
Deferred tax assets on account of:
Impact of expenditure charged to profit and loss but allowed for tax 
purposes on payment basis
Timing difference between book depreciation and Income Tax Act, 1961

109 (21) 88

71 26 97

Provision for expected credit loss on financial assets 
Processing fees and loan origination charges adjustment related to 
financial assets at amortized cost
Provision for expenses disallowed as per Income-tax Act, 1961 
On account of lease liabilities

5,206 810 6,016
(99)420 321

151 254 405
461 65 526

Deferred tax asset (B) 6,418 1,035 7,453
Net Deferred tax assets (B-A) 5,638 923 6,560

Note:

1. The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred 
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

2. Based on the level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred income tax assets are 
deductible, management believes that the Company will realize the benefits of those deductible differences. The amount of the deferred income tax assets 
considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced.
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Recognised in 
equity

Recognised in As at
31 March 2021

Recognised in 
Profit and loss

As at
31 March 2020Particulars OCI

Deferred tax liabilities on account of:
Fair value on Investments 
On account of right to use asset
Borrowing cost adjustment related to financial liabilities at amortized cost

0(28)29
419(94)513
233136 97

(0) 128Special Reserve created as per section 29C of NHB Act, 1987 and claimed 
as deduction u/s 36 (1) (viii) of income Tax Act, 1961

128

(25) 780806Deferred Tax liability (A)
Deferred tax assets on account of:
Impact of expenditure charged to profit and loss but allowed for tax 
purposes on payment basis
Timing difference between book depreciation and Income Tax Act, 1961

10950 60

7124 47

2,472 2,734 5,206Provision for expected credit loss on financial assets 
Provision for security deposits
Processing fees and loan origination charges adjustment related to 
financial assets at amortized cost
Provision for expenses disallowed as per Income-tax Act, 1961 
Re-measurement of gain/loss on defined benefit plans 
On account of lease liabilities

(103)523 420

126 25 151
(2) 02

(86)546 461
Deferred tax asset (B) 3,743 2,675 6,418
Net Deferred tax assets (B-A) 2,937 2,700 5,638

34 Earnings per share

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Year ended 
31 March 2021Particulars

Net Profit after tax attributable to Equity Holders (R lakhs)
Weighted Average number of Equity Shares for basic earnings per share 
Weighted Average number of Equity Shares for diluted earnings per share 
Earnings per Share 
Basic earning per share ^
Diluted earning per share ^
Nominal value of shares ^

(5,551)
30,80,33,193
30,80,33,193

1,686
30,80,33,193
30,80,33,193

(1.80)
(1.80)

0.55
0.55

10 10
The Company has not issued any potential equity shares. Accordingly diluted EPS is equal to basic EPS
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3S Related Party Disclosures

Name of the related party and nature of the related party relationship have been disclosed where control exists or related party is KMP, Irrespective of whether or not there have 
been transactions between the related parties. In other cases, disclosure has been made only when there have been transactions with those parties

Related party disclosures as required under Indian Accounting standard 24," Related party disclosure" arc given below

Name of Related PartyNature of Relationship

With effect from November 30, 2021Upto November 30, 2021
Sumitomo Mitsui Financial GroupUltimate Holding Company Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited
Not applicable1. Fullerton Financials Holdings Ptc Ltd (Holding Company of 

Angelica)
2. Angelica Investments Ptc Ltd, Singapore ('Angelica')

Holding Company Fullerton India Credit Company limited
1. Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited
2. Fullerton Financials Holdings Ptc Ltd (Holding Company of Angelica)
3. Angelica Investments Pte Ltd, Singapore ('Angelica')

Entities having significant Influence Not applicable

Key Management Personnel Dr. Milan Shuster -Independent Director (upto December 22, 2021)
Ms. Sudha Plllai - Independent Director
Mr. Shantanu Mitre - Chairman and Non-executive d!rcctor(w.c.f December 22, 2021)
Mr, Ajay Pareek - Non-cxccutivc dircctor(upto December 22,2021)
Mr. Radhakrishnan Mcnon - Independent dircctor(upto December 22, 2021)
Mr. Anlndo Mukherjco - Non-Executive Director (upto December 22,2021)
Mr. Pankaj Malik - Chief Financial Officer (upto 30 September 2021}
Mr. Ashlsh Chaudhary - Chief Financial Officer (w.c.f. 1 October 2021)
Ms. Sccma Sarda - Company Secretary (upto October 31,2021)
Mr. jitendra Mahcshwari -Company Secretary (w.c.f. November 1,2021)
Mr. Rakesh Makkar, Chief Executive Officer and Whole time Director ( upto March 15, 2022) *

**ln the Interim, effective from 29 March,2022 till the time new CEO is appointed or 180 days whichever is earlier. Interim Operations Management Committee’' comprise of Mr. 
Shantanu Mitre - (Chairman and Non-executive director), Mr. Ajay Pareek (Non-cxccutlvc director), Mr. DharajayTIwarl (Chief Risk Officer), was constituted to manage the day-to- 
day running of the Company.

35.1 Transactions during the period with related parties

Asat
31 March 2022 

(R lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

(R lakhs)
Nature of Transaction

Income as per Resource sharing agreement 
Fullerton India Credit Company Limited 1S7 89

Expense as per Resource sharing agreement • 
Fullerton India Credit Company Limited 1,490 1.0SS

Commitment Charges on Committed lines provided by parent Company 
Fullerton India Credit Company Ltd 215 221

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(R lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

(R lakhs)
Remuneration to Company's Key Management Personnel

Salary, bonus and allowances (Including short term benefits)
Mr. Rakesh Makkar 
Mr. Ashlsh Chaudhary 
Ms. Scema Sarda 
Mr. Jitendra Mahcswari 
Director's sitting fees 
Ms. Sudha Pillai
Dr. Milan Shuster -Independent Director (upto December 22,2021)
Mr. Radhakrishnan Menon • lrdcpcndcntdirector(upto December 22, 2021) 
Post -employment benefits (on payment basis) **
Ms. Seema Sarda 
Mr. Rakesh Makkar
Share based payments (on payment basis)**
Mr. Rakesh Makkar

215 303
19
27 49
20

16 13
10 11
4

1
3.4

7SS
Total 1,067 379

Note : The managerial remuneration paid by the Company to its Directors during the current year is In accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 
197 read with Schedule V to the Act vide special resolution passed at its extra ordinary general meeting held 25 March 2021.

* The aforesaid resource sharing cost paid to Fullerton India Credit Company Ltd includes deputation cost of certains KMP.
••Expense towards gratuity, leave encashment and Share based payments cannot be determined employee wise since the provision is based on the actuarial valuation of the 
company as a whole, hence the same have not been considered in above disclosure.

3S.2 Amount Outstanding to / from related parties:

As at
31 March 2022 

(R lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

(R lakhs)
Balance outstanding as at the period end

Equity Investment made by the parent company 
Fullerton India Credit Company Ltd 
Other Payable (Net)
Fullerton India Credit Company Ltd

71,000 71,000

540 116
Off balance sheet Exposure
Committed credit lines sanctioned by the holding Company (FICC) was matured and renewed on 29 March 2022, amounting to R 25,000 Lakhs (31 March 2021: R 25,000 Lakhs)



Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 
31 March 2022

Capital Management

Equity share capital and other equity are considered for the purpose of the Company's capital management The Compan/s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their 
ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and maintain an optimal capital structure to 
reduce the cost of capital.

36

The capital structure of the Company is based on management's Judgement of its strategic and day-to-day needs with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditors and 
market confidence. The funding requirements are met through equity, borrowings and operating cash flows generated. The management monitors the return on capital and the 
board of directors monitors the level of dividends to shareholders of the Company. The Company may take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital 
structure.

The Company maintains its capital base to cover the risks inherent in the business and in meeting the capital adequacy requirements of the National Housing Bank (NHB). The 
Company endeavours to maintain capital higher than the mandated regulatory norms. The adequacy of the company's capital is monitored using, among other measures, the 
regulations issued NHB. Company has complied in full with all its externally Imposed capital requirements over the reported period. For details refer "Additional disclosure as per 
NHB Notes"

Retirement Benefit Plans37

(A) Defined Contribution Plan (Provident fund)

The total expense charged to income statement of T 366 lakhs (2021: T 313 lakhs) represents contributions payable to Employees State Insurance Corporation and provident fund 
plans by the Company at rates specified in the rules of the plan.

(B) Defined Benefit Obligation 
I. Gratuity

As at
31 March 2022 

lakhs)

As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 

lakhs)
Actuarial assumptions

Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 
(2012-14)

Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

(2006-08) 
6.33% p.a. 
8.00% p.a.

Mortality table

Discount rate and expected rate of return on assets 
Rate of increase in compensation 
Employee turnover:
Category 1 - For basic upto T 1.2 lakhs 
Up to 4 years 
5 years and above

6.41% p.a. 
9.00% p.a.

35.68%
1.25%

44.20%
1.25%

Category 2- For basic more than * 1.2 lakhs 
Up to 4 years 
5 years and above 
Assets information:
Insurance fund

29.91%
1.25%

49.40%
1.25%

213 2

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year
Interest expense
Current service cost
Past service cost
Liability Transferred In
Liability Transferred Out
Benefit Paid From the Fund / Employer
Actuarial (Galns)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change In Demographic Assumptions 
Actuarial (Galns)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change In Financial Assumptions 
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience adjustments
Present Value of obligation at the end of the year

208 162
13 9
60 33

16 1
(10) (3)
(10)
(51) 83
31 (71)

(26) (6)
230 208

Changes in the Fair value of Plan Assets
Farr value of plan assets at beginning of the year
Interest income
Contributions by the Employer
Mortality charges and taxes
Benefit Paid from the Fund
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year

2
10

208 2

(S)
(2) (0)

213 2

Assets and liabilities recognised In the balance sheet 
Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the Period 
Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit))
Net (Liability)/Asset Recognized In the Balance Sheet_____________

(230) (208)
213 2
(17) (205)

(205)(17)
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Year ended 
31 March 2021 

{'lakhs)

As at
31 March 2022 

(' lakhs)
Expenses recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss

60 33Current Service Cost
Past service cost
Net interest (income)/ expense
Net gratuity expense recognised
Included in note 32 'Employee benefits expense'
Expenses recognised in the Statement of Other comprehensive income (OCi)
Actuarial gain/ loss on post-employment benefit obligation
Total remeasurement cost / (credit) for the year recognised In OCI

3 9
63 41

(45) 5
(45) 5

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

(' lakhs)

As at
31 March 2022 

lakhs)
Reconciliation of Net asset / (liability) recognised:

Opening Net Liability
Expenses recognised at the end of period
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Net Liability/(Asset) Transfer In
Net (Uabillty)/Asset Transfer Out
Employer's Contribution
Benefits directly paid by Employer
Net Uabllity/(Asset) Recogniied In the Balance Sheet

205 162
63 41

(45) 5
16 1

(10) (3)
(208) (2)
ja
17 205

Sensitivity Analysis:

As at 31 March 2022 {' lakhs) sat ended3l March 202l(' lakhs)Particulars
Decrease Increase Decrease increase

Discount Rate (1% movement)
Future Salary Growth (1% movement)
Rate of Employee Turnover (136 movement)

41 34 35 (29)
(33) 40 (29) 34
11 (10) ill8

"The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all 
other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change In the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change In assumptions would 
occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end 
of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised In the Balance Sheet."

Maturity analysis of projected benefit obligation

As at Year ended 
31 March 2021 

('lakhs)
Position as at Year end 31 March 2022 

('lakhs)
1 2 2
2 2 2
3 3 3
4 3 3
5 3 3

Sum of Years 6 to 10 31 58

Risks associated with Defined Benefit Plan:

(I) interest Rate Risk
A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases the 
mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset.

(ii) Salary Risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than 
assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

(ill) Investment Risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on 
government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, It has a relatively balanced mix of investments In 
government securities, and other debt instruments.

(iv) Asset Liability Matching (ALM) Risk
The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this generally reduces ALM risk.

(v) Mortality Risk
Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for lifetime and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk.

(vi) Concentration Risk
Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a default will wipe out all the assets. Although probability of this is very less as 
insurance companies have to follow regulatory guidelines.

During the year, there were no plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.
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(C) Compensated absences
Year ended 

31 March 2021 
ft lakhs)

As at
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)
Particulars

Actuarial assumptions 
Mortality table Indian Assured 

Lives Mortality 
(2012-14) 

6.41% p.a. 
9.00% p.a.

Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

(2006-08) 
6.33% p.a. 
8.00% p.a.

Discount rate and expected rate of return on assets 
Rate of increase in compensation 
Employee turnover:
Category 1 - For basic upto 11.2 lakhs 
Up to 4 years 
5 years and above

44.20%
1.25%

35.68%
1.25%

Category 2- For basic more than ^ 1.2 lakhs 
Up to 4 years 
5 years and above

49.40%
1.25%

29.91%
1%

Unfunded UnfundedFunding status

Projected obligation against compensated absences 105 80
Note: The above information is as certified by the actuary and relied upon by the auditors.

37.1 The Code on Social Security 2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment received Presidential assent in September 2020 and over the 
period majority of the state have notified draft guidelines. The Code has been published In the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not 
been notified and the final rules are yet to be Issued, however, it Is anticipated that the code would be enacted in the near future. Accordingly, the Company has carried out the 
impact assessment of the gratuity liability based on an actuarial valuation and on a prudent basis made a provision of ^ 264 lakhs in the profit and loss account for the year ended 31 
March, 2022 (RNIL lakhs in previous year). This is over and above the provisions made In normal course based on extant rules and as reported in the above disclosure.

38 Employee stock appreciation rights

The Company has an has cash settled share based payments scheme, under which grants were made as per details provided below:

Date of Grant Grant 6 Grant 7 Grant 8 Grant 9 Grant 9AGrant 5 Grant 6A Grant 10 Grant 11
Ol-Apr-18Ol-Apr-15 Ol-Apr-16 Ol-Apr-17 01-Apr-19 Ol-Apr-19 Ol-Apr-17 01-Apr-20 Ol-Apr-21

Value of the Grant R145 Lakhs1115 Lakhs ^ 155 lakhs *126 Lakhs * 179 Lakhs * 38Lakhs * 251 Lakhs *159 Lakhs *108 Lakhs
Achievement of Profit before 
tax (PBT) and Return on Equity 
(ROE) targets as per approved 
plan

Achievement of PAT and ROE -Targets as per approved plan Achievement of 
specific targets

Achievement of 
certain targets

Achievement of 
certain targetsPerformance

Condition

Tranche 1: 33% 
vesting on 1st 
December 
2018

Tranche 1:33% 
vesting on 1st 
December 2019

Tranche I: 33% 
vesting on 1st 
December 2020

Tranche 1:33% 
vesting on 1st 
December 2021

Tranche i: 33% 
vesting on 1st 
December 2022

Tranche 1:50% 
vesting on 1st 
December 2020

Tranche 1:33% 
vesting on 1st 
December 2023

Tranche 1:33% 
vesting on 1st 
December 2022

Tranche I: 33% 
vesting on 1st 
December 2024

Graded Vesting (subject to 
achievement of 
performance condition 
given above)

Tranche 11:33% 
vesting on 1st 
December 2020

Tranche II: 
33% vesting 
on 1st 
December 
2019

Tranche II: 33% 
vesting on 1st 
December 2021

Tranche 11:33% 
vesting on 1st 
December 2022

Tranche II: 33% 
vesting on 1st 
December 2023

Tranche 11:33% 
vesting on 1st 
December 2023

Tranche II: 50% 
vesting on 1st 
December 2021

Tranche II: 33% 
vesting on 1st 
December 2024

Tranche II: 33% 
vesting on 1st 
December 2025

Tranche III: 
34% vesting on 
1st December 
2021

Tranche III: 
34% vesting 
on 1st 
December 
2020

Tranche III: 
34% vesting on 
1st December 
2022

Tranche III: 
34% vesting on 
1st December 
2023

Tranche III: 
34% vesting on 
1st December 
2024

Tranche III: 34% 
vesting on 1st 
December 2024

Tranche III: 34% 
vesting on 1st 
December 2025

Tranche III: 34% 
vesting on 1st 
December 2026

Tranche 1:3 
years 8 
months

Tranche I: 3 
years 8 months

Tranche 1:3 
years 8 months

Tranche I: 3 
years 8 months

Tranche 1:3 
years 8 months

Tranche I: 3 
years 8 months

Tranche 1:3 
years 8 months

Tranche 1:3 
years 8 months

Tranche 1:3 
years 8 months

period
(including

Tranche 11:4 
years 8 
months

Tranche II: 4 
years 8 months

Tranche 11:4 
years 8 months

Tranche 11:4 
years 8 months

Tranche II: 4 
years 8 months

Tranche II: 4 
years 8 months

Tranche II: 4 
years 8 months

Tranche 11:4 
years 8 months

Tranche 11:4 
years 8 months

Tranche III: 5 
years 8 months

Tranche III: 5 
years 8 months

Tranche III: 5 
years 8 
months

Tranche III: 5 
years 8 months

Tranche III: 5 
years 8 months

Tranche III: 5 
years 8 months

Tranche III: 5 
years 8 months

Tranche III: 5 
years 8 months

Within 30 days from each vesting date but not later than 2 years from the date of last vesting except for 6A where period is 3 yearsExercise
period
Method of 
Settlement

Cash Payout as per terms of the scheme

The estimated fair value of the grant at a notional value of *10 per unit (as at the date of grant) Isas below:

Particulars Grant 10 Grant 11Grant 5 Grants Grant 7 Grant 8 Grants Grant 9A Grant 6A
As at 31 March 2022 9.2418.33 14.29 12.87 11.30 9.24 12.87 7.90 10,42
As at 31 March 2021 12.6514,03 12.65 11.10 8.75 8.75 7.52 NA17.97
Exercise price vest 1 16.18 17.25 11.10 NA NA 17.25 NA NA15.96
Exercise price vest 2 12.65 NA NA NA 12.65 NA NA20.88 19,47

NA NA NA NA NA NA[Exercise price vest 3 25.32 14.03 NA

Fair value is computed using the method provided in the scheme for estimating the valuation of the grant which is linked to the Net Book Value of the business and board approved 
business plan.
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The movement of the stock appreciation rights during the year is as under:

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021Particulars (No. of Options)

Options outstanding as at the beginning of the year 
Options granted during the year 
Options forfeited during the year 
Options exercised during the year 
Options lapsed during the year
Grants of employee transferred during the yearfrom/(to) holding company 
Options Outstanding as at the end of the year 
Options vested and exercisable
Expense recognised (T In Lakhs)_____________________________________

60,01,125
10,75,000

(41,63,000)
(11,27,964)
(15,09,786)

(75,375)
2,00,000

59,88,750
15,93,000

(15,43,500)
(37,125)

54,13,875
5,87,250

(71)347
Note: The above information is as certified by the actuary and relied upon by the auditors.

39 Segment Information

Business Segment
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM regularly monitors and 
reviews the operating result of the whole Company as one segment of "financing". Thus, as defined In Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments", the Company's entire business falls under 
this one operational segment.

Entity wide disclosures
The Company operates in a single business segment ie. financing, which has similar risks and returns taking into account the organisational structure and the internal reporting 
systems. No revenue from transactions with a single external customer or counterparty amounted to 10% or more of the company's total revenue in year ended 31 March 2022 or 31 
March 2021. The Company operates in single geography i.e. India and therefore geographical information is not required to be disclosed separately.

40 Contingent Liability and commitments

a) Contingent liabilities

The Company has assessed its obligations arising in the normal course of business, including pending litigations, proceedings pending with tax authorities and other contracts 
including derivative and long term contracts. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial statements.

a) Contingent liabilities

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021Particular

Guarantees
Contingent liability for litigations pending against the Company

25 25
4 3

b) Capital and other commitments

(i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for as at 31 March 2022 is * 28 Lakhs (31 March 2021 is * 32 Lakhs).
(ii) Loans sanctioned not yet disbursed as at 31 March 2022 were * 37,984 Lakhs (31 March 2021 were * 21,835 Lakhs).

c) Litigation

Litigations constitutes the number of pending litigations filed by customers/vendors/ex-employees/others against the Company for service deficiency/title claims/monetary 
claims/back wages/reinstatement Issues respectively which is in the course of business as usual.

Asides the above the Company in its rightful entitlement initiates Civil or Criminal litigations for recovery of loan and enforcing security interest.

A provision Is noted/created where an unfavourable outcome is deemed probable based on review of pending litigations with its legal counsels including loss contingency on account 
of such litigation and claims, and classification of such contingency as 'low', 'medium' or 'high' with due provisioning thereof. The management believes that the outcome of such 
matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position, its operations and cash flows.

d) Tax contingencies

Various tax-related legal proceedings are pending against the Company at various levels of appeal with the tax authorities. Management to best of its judgement and estimates 
where a reasonable range of potential outcomes is estimated basis available information accrues liability. Based on Judicial precedents in the Company's and other cases and upon 
consultation with tax counsels, the management believes that it is more likely than not that the Compan/s tax position will be sustained. Accordingly, provision has been made in the 
accounts wherever required. Disputed tax issues that are classified as remote are not disclosed as contingent liabilities by the Company.
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EMI Moratorium and resolution as per RBI Regulatory packages
In the previous year ended 31 March 2021, in accordance with the Reserve Bank of India (’RBI') guidelines relating to ’COVID-19 Regulatory Package’ dated 27 March 2020 and 
subsequent guidelines on EMI moratorium dated 17 April 2020 and 23 May 2020, the Company had offered moratorium to its customers based on requests as well as on Suo-moto 
for EMIs falling due between 1 March 2020 to 31 August 2020. Further, the Company offered resolution plan to its customers pursuant to the RBI's guideline 'Resolution framework 
for COVID-19 related stress’ dated 6 August 2020. During the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the Company offered resolution plan to its customers pursuant to RBi's guideline 
'Resolution Framework -2.0: Resolution ofCovld-19 related stress of Individuals and Small Businesses' dated 5 May 2021. Disclosure as required by RBI for moratorium and resolution 
framework are given below in note below.

41

Exposure to 
accounts 

classified as 
Standard 

consequent to 
implementation 

of resolution plan 
Position as at 30 

September 2021*

Exposure to 
accounts 

classified as 
Standard 

consequent to 
impiementlon of 
resolution plan- 
Positions as at 1 

April 2022

Of (A) aggregate 
debt that slipped 
into NPA during 

the half year 
ended 31 March 

2022

Of (A) amount 
paid by the 
borrowers 

during the half 
year ended 31 

March 2022

Of (A) amount 
written off during 

the half-year 
ended 31 March 

2022

Type of Borrowers 
(Amount in Lakhs)

7,501
3,508

1,269 271 6,194
3,031

Personal Loans 
Others 574 186

Total 11,009 1,843 457 9,225

Exposure to 
accounts 

classified as 
Standard 

consequent to 
impiementlon of 
resolution plan- 
Positions as at 
30 September 

2021**

Exposure to 
accounts 

classified as 
Standard 

consequents 
implementation 

of resolution plan 
Position as at 31 

March 2022*

Of (A) aggregate 
debt that slipped 
into NPA during 

the half year 
ended 31 March 

2022

Of (A) amount 
paid by the 
borrowers 

during the half 
year ended 31 

March 2022

Of (A) amount 
written off during 

the half- year 
ended 31 March 

2022

Type of Borrowers 
(Amount in Lakhs)

Personal Loans 
Others

6,306
3,366

1,564 877 5,279
3,230701 99

Total 9,672 2,265 976 8,509
* includes interest capitalised post implementation of one time resolution plan
** Includes restructuring implemented pursuant to OTR 2.0 and balances for accounts for which OTR 2.0 was Invoked prior to 30 September 2021 and implemented after 30 
September 2021

42 Leases

The Company has entered into leasing arrangements for premises. Majority of the leases are cancellable by the Company. ROU has been included after the line 'Property, Plant and 
Equipment' and Lease Liability has been included under 'Other Financial Liabilities' in the Balance Sheet.

(I) Amounts recognised in Balance Sheet

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021Particular

a) Right-of-use assets (net)
b) Lease liabilities 

Current 
Non-current

Total Lease liabilities
c) Additions to the Right-of-use assets

1,858 1,646

414 279
1,665
2,079

1,552
1,831

756 408

Statement showing carrying value of right of use assets:

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021Particular

As the beginning of year end 
Additions
Deductions/Adjustments
Depreciation
As the year end

1,640 2,404
756 408
154 434

737384
1,858 1,640

(ii) Amount Recognised in profit Si loss

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021Particular

Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets 
Interest expenses (included In finance cost)
Variable lease payments not Included In the measurement of lease liabilities 
Income from sub-leasing rlght-of-use assets
Expenses relating to short-term leases and leases of low value assets______

384 345
166 119

(Mi) Maturity analysis of undiscounted lease liability

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021Particulars

Less than one year 
One to five years 
More than five years
Total payments

575 433
1,937 1,565

65 342
2,577 2,340
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(lv) Cash flows

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021Particular

The total cash outflow of leases 514 433

(v) Future Commitments
As at

31 March 2022
As at

31 March 2021Particulars

Future undiscounted lease payments to which leases is not yet commenced

(vi) Future cash outflows to which the lessee Is potentially exposed that are not reflected In the measurement of lease liabilities and are as follow:

(a) Variable lease payments - This variability will typically arise from either inflation or market-based pricing adjustments. Currently, the Company do not have any lease which have 
variable lease payment terms based on inflation or market based pricing.

(b) Extension options and termination options - The table above represents Company's best estimate of future cash out flows for leases, including assumptions regarding the 
exercising of contractual extension and termination options.

(c) Residual value guarantees - The Company has asset retlral obligations and accordingly have recognised them as part of ROU.

(d) The Company does not have have any lease arrangements as at reporting date which are not yet commenced to which the Company is committed.

(vll) The Company currently does not have any sale and lease back transactions. The Company does not have any restrictions or covenants imposed by the lessor on its operating 
leases which restrict its businesses.

43 Micro and Small Enterprises

The Company Identifies suppliers registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED) by obtaining confirmations from all suppliers. Based 
on the information received by the Company, some of the suppliers have confirmed to be registered under MSMED Act, 2006. Accordingly the disclosure relating to amount unpaid 
as at the year ended together with interest paid/payable is disclosed below:

As at
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)

Particular

The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting
year

87 37

The amount of interest paid by the buyer In terms of section 16 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006, along with the
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during
the year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year;

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even In the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro small and Medium 
Enterprise Development Act, 2006.___________________________________________________________________________________________

44 Corporate Social Responsibilities Expenses

Gross amount required to be spent by the company is * Nil lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2022 and * 14 lakhs for 31 March 2021. 
The details of amounts spent towards CSR are as under:

As at
31 March 2022 

«lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)

Particular

I) Construction / acquisition of any asset
ii) On purpose other than (i) above 
Amount spent In cash________________

14
14

The Compan/s CSR policy Is both community and environment- based. Various programmes are planned In areas as diverse as health, educations, livelihood generations, skill 
developments and rural development.
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45 Events after reporting date

There have been no events after the reporting date that require adjustment or disclosure in these financial statements.

46 Support Service Cost

During the year, the holding company leased its premises to Its subsidiary, Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited to carry out its operations. The holding company has 
entered into resource sharing agreement with the subsidiary company, as per which the holdinfg company has agreed to share premises and other resources and thereby to facilitate 
achieve economies of scale and avoid duplicatlon.The reimbursement of cost is calculated as pe arm's length price certified by the independent third party.

During the year the Company has paid ^ 1/490 lakhs (31 March 2021; ^ 1,055 lakhs) on account of above mentioned arrangement.

During the year, the Company has also co-shared the premises to Its holding company to carry out its operations. The Company has entered into resource sharing agreement with its 
holding company. Under the arrangement the company have leased the premises and other resources to facilitate the business operation. The reimbursement of cost is calculated 
as pe arm's length price certified by the independent third party.

During the year the Company has charged to ^ 157 lakhs (31 March 2021; T 89 lakhs) on account of above mentioned arrangement.

47 IRDAI disclosure

Disclosure as per Schedule VI B for insurance commission income earned during the year ended:

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

('lakhs)
Particular

ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company Ltd
HDFC Life Insurance Company Ltd
ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Ltd

5
2
3

There was no amount due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund as at 31 March, 2022 (31 March 2021: Nil).48

49 Financial risk management

Risk management framework

The Company's primary focus Is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The Company places 
emphasis on risk management practices to ensure an appropriate balance between risks and returns. The Board of Directors of the Company (BOD) along with the management are 
primarily responsible for Financial Risk Management of the Company. The BOD's oversight of risk includes review and approval of key risk strategies and policies. These are 
monitored and governed through the Risk Oversight Committee (ROC). Audit Committee (AC) ensures that an independent assurance is provided to the BOD.

The ROC controls and manages an inherent risks related to the Company's activities by the following risk categories:

Risk Exposure arising from Management
Credit Risk Cash and cash equivalents, bank balance other than cash and 

cash equivalents, trade & other receivables, financial assets 
measured at amortised cost

ROC is actively involved in the following:

- Oversight over the implementation of Core Credit Policies and Remedial 
Management Policies of the Company;

• Review of the overall portfolio credit performance of the Company and 
establishing concentration limits by product programs, collateral types, tenors 
and customer profile;
• Determination of portfolio credit quality by reviewing observed default rates, 
provisions held, write-offs and status of recoveries from defaulting borrowers;
and
• Review of product programs and recommending improvements/ amendments 
thereto.

Liquidity Risk Financial liabilities BOD is responsible for setting the strategic direction for the Company. This includes, 
establishing the liquidity risk appetite and the liquidity required to fulfil its strategic 
Initiatives, setting boundaries/limits within such levels of tolerance and approving the 
policies that govern risk management under business as usual and stressed conditions.

Liquidity risk is managed by the Asset Liability Committee (ALCO), based on the 
Compan/s Liquidity Policy and procedures which are based on guidelines provided by 
ROC. ALCO derives its authority from the ROC and is responsible for ensuring 
adherence to the liquidity and asset - liability management limits set by the BOD and 
to oversee Implementation of the strategic direction articulated by the BOD. ALCO not 
only ensures that the Company has adequate liquidity on an on-going basis but also 
examines how liquidity requirements are likely to evolve under different assumptions.

Recognised financial assets and financial [labilities not 
denominated In functional currency

ROC is involved in the formulation of policies for monitoring market risk. The risk is 
managed through close identification, supervision and monitoring of risks arising from 
movements In market rates such as Interest rates, foreign exchange rates, traded 
prices and credit spreads, which may result in a loss of earnings and capital.

Market Risk - Foreign 
Exchange
Market Risk - Interest Rate / 
Dividend Coupon

Investments in equity securities, units of mutual funds, bonds, 
goverments securities, certificate of deposits and commercial 
paper

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter party to the financial instrument falls to meet its contractual obligation, and arises principally from the 
cash and cash equivalents, bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents, trade & other receivables and financial assets measured at amortised cost.

The Risk Management Policy addresses the recognition, measurement, monitoring and reporting of the Credit risk. The ROC reviews and approves Loan Product programs on an on
going basis. Key aspects of the product programs outline the framework of any credit financial product being offered by the Company. Within this established framework, credit 
policies are established to manage the sourcing of proposals, channels of business acquisition, process of underwriting, information systems involved, credit appraisal, verification, 
documentation, disbursement and collection / recovery procedures.

Product level credit risk policies are implemented to align all new customer acquisitions across locations and regions, individual profiles, income levels, leverage positions, collateral 
types and value, source of income and continuity of employment/business.

The Company has additionally taken the following measures:-
• Credit risk team is appointed to enhance focus on monitoring of borrowers and to facilitate proactive action wherever required.
• Enhanced monitoring of portfolio through periodic reviews.
• Periodic trainings to its credit officers
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Credit approval

The Board of Directors has delegated credit approval authority to the Compan/s Credit Committee, Chief Risk Officer / National Credit Manager, Regional Credit Manager and Credit 
Manager under the Compan/s Credit Policy. The branch credit team/operations team monitors compliance with the terms and conditions of credit facilities prior to disbursement. It 
also reviews the completeness of documentation and creation of security by the borrower.

The central operations team verifies adherence to the terms of the credit approval prior to the disbursement of credit facilities.

Credit underwriting

The Compan/s credit officers evaluate credit proposals on the basis of credit underwriting policies and procedures approved by the management. The criteria typically include 
factors such as the customer eligibility, income and debt obligation assessment, nature of the product, customer scorecards wherever applicable, historical experience, type of 
collateral provided and demographic parameters. Any deviations need to be approved at the designated levels.The company offers to add on funding to existing borrowers basis 
credit performance governed through credit approvals and approved policy.

External agencies such as field Investigation agencies facilitate a due diligence process Including visits to offices and residences, risk containment agencies for document frauds, legal 
& valuer agencies for property evaluation.

Analysis of risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged In similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have similar economic features that 
would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes In economic, political or other conditions.
Since the Company provides only retail loans, there is not significant concentration risk at the borrower / counterparty level. The maximum loan outstanding to any individual 
borrower or counterparty as of 31 March 2022 was‘t 1,462 lakhs (31 March 2021: ^ 1,518 lakhs), before taking Into account collateral or other credit enhancements or undisbursed 
commitments.
70% of the Company's Loan outstanding is from Borrowers residing across 6 various states of India.

Stress testing of portfolio

The Company evaluates potentially adverse scenarios that may impact the business or portfolio performance. Annual stress test exercise covering the entire portfolio is performed to 
assess vulnerability of the business extreme scenarios to possible extreme scenarios and effectivenessof management actions. The assessed impact Is incorporated into risk appetite 
of the Company to ensure regulatory compliance.

Analysis of inputs to the ECL model under multiple economic scenarios

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash 
flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows which the Company expects to receive) discounted at an approximation to the EIR.

Cash shortfalls are identified as follows.
• For 12-month ECLs: Cash shortfalls resulting from default events that are possible in the next 12 months.
• For lifetime ECLs: Cash shortfalls resulting from default events that are possible over the expected life of the financial Instrument.

For undrawn loan commitments, a cash shortfall Is the difference between:
• the contractual cash flows that are due to the Company if the holder of the loan commitment draws down the loan; and 
■ the cash flows that the Company expects to receive If the loan is drawn down.

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for cash and cash equivalents, bank balance, investment, trade and other receivables, loans and advances together with 
loan commitments and other financial assets measured at amortised cost, collectively named as 'financial assets at amortised cost'.

The Company performs a collective assessment on a homogeneous pool of outstanding loans grouped on the basis of shared risk characteristic based on the type of products sliced 
down to geography as part of the impairment analysis.

For estimation of ECL, the entire portfolio Is broadly partitioned into products like Loan against property and Housing Loans. Products are further segregated on geography level and 
sectors. This portfolio is used to arrive exposure at Default, Probability of default and Loss given default.

The Company follows the expected credit loss (ECL) methodology based on historically available information and projection of macroeconomic indicators in order to determine the 
impairment allowance required against different categories / pool of loan accounts.

All defining parameters (PD, LGD, EL Adjustment factor) are estimated on a half yearly frequency. However, required changes may be done more frequently in case of change in 
market condition, portfolio changes and other scenarios.

The ECL allowance Is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant Increase In 
credit risk since its initial recognition. In which case, the allowance Is based on the 12 months' expected credit loss (12mECL).

The 12mECL Is part of LTECL that represent the ECLs from default events on a financial asset that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Definition of Default

As per the Compan/s policy, all assets are classified into stage 1, stage 2 and stage 3. Assets up to 29 DPD (days past due) are classified as stage 1 assets. Assets with DPD of 30 days 
up to 89 days are classified as stage 2 assets and assets with DPD greater than 90 days are classified as stage 3 assets. The Company considers a financial instrument defaulted and 
therefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on its contractual payments. As a part of qualitative assessment, of 
whether the customer is in default, the company also considers a variety of instances that may Indicate unlikeliness to pay. In such instances, the Company treats the customer at 
default and therefore assesses such loans as stage 3 for ECL calculations, following are such instances:
- If the customer has requested restructuring in repayment terms, such restructured, rescheduled or renegotiated accounts
- A stage 3 customer having other loans which are In stage 1 or stage 2
- cases where company suspects fraud and legal proceedings are initiated.

The Company continues to recognize interest Income during the moratorium period. As per assessment done by the Company and in the absence of other customer related credit 
risk Indicators, the granting of moratorium period does not result In automatically triggering of significant increase in credit risk criteria of Ind AS 109.

The Company continuously monitors all financial assets subject to ECLs. In order to determine whether an Instrument or a portfolio of instruments are subject to 12mECL or LTECL, 
the Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company considers an exposure to have significantly Increased in 
credit risk since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 29 days past due. The Company also applies a qualitative method for triggering a significant increase In 
credit risk for an asset. This will be the case for exposure that meets certain heighted risk criteria, such as political situations and exceptions to normal economic scenarios. Such 
factors are based on its expert judgement and relevant historical experiences. Significant increase in Credit risk has also been recognised for borrowers to whom One Time 
Restructuring has been granted on account of Covid-19, and LTECL has been computed for such borrowers.
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The Probability of Default (PD) Is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the 
facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

The Company collects performance and default information about its credit risk exposures analysed by Product and geography. The Company employs statistical models of flow 
analysis and marginal default rate technique to analyse the data collected and generate estimates of the remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how these are expected to change 
as a result of the passage of time.

The Exposure at Default (EAD) is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including 
repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities and accrued interest whether due or not.

The Loss Given Default (LGD) is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occursat a given time. It Is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due 
(net of recovery cost) and those that the lender would expect to receive. They are calculated on a discounted cash flow basis using the effective Interest rate as the discounting 
factor. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

The Company collects a list of all the defaulters and tracked from the first time they become non-performing asset ("Stage 3"). The Company calculates the LGD based on the present 
value of month on month recovery post default for Stage 1 and 2 and takes into account of the Stage 3 recovery and present value of the actual Stage 3.

The inputs and models used for calculating ECls may not always capture all characteristics of the market at the date of the financial statements. To reflect this, qualitative 
adjustments or overlays are occasionally made as temporary adjustments when such differences are significantly material.

EL Adjustment Factor is factor used to adjust the ECL computation to eliminate the biasness in different ticket size and number of loan accounts considering the nature of 
business/products.

Forward Looking Information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company arrives at forward-looking PD estimates through the incorporation of forward-looking macro-economic factors. The various 
macro-economic factors considered are Gross Domestic Product (% real change). Consumer Price Index Change {%), Lending interest Rate (%), Private consumption {% real change). 
Manufacturing {% real change), Industrial production (% change), Recorded unemployment (%). Product-wise selection of macro-economic factors is done basis the best fitting of the 
macro indicators with the historical loss trends also taking into account management views, if any, on the drivers of the portfolio. Apart from considering the base case of the macro 
outlook, two more scenarios an optimistic and pessimistic views of the outlook are also evaluated taking into account the external market conditions. Appropriate weightage is 
assigned to each of the scenarios to arrive at the final estimates. Presently, a higher deterioration of the base macro outlook is done to arrive at the pessimistic view and also its 
weightage has been Increased vis-a-vis pre-Covid levels in view of external conditions. The inputs and models used for calculating ECLs may not always capture all characteristics of 
the market at the date of the financial statements. To reflect this, qualitative adjustments or overlays are occasionally made as temporary adjustments when such differences are 
significantly material.

Reconciliation of ECL balances In given below:

As at 31 March 2022 (T lakhs) As at 31 March 2021 (* lakhs)Particulars
TotalStage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

1,549ECL allowance - opening balance 
New assets originated or purchased 
Assets derecognised or repaid 
Net transfers to/from Stage 1 
Net transfers to/from Stage 2 
Net transfers to/from Stage 3 
Remeasurement of ECL 
Amounts written off

8,272 11,038 20,859 2,538 773 6,944 10,255
670 670 132 132

(1,319) (2,713)(438) (957) (349) (19) (1,953) (2,321)
(87) (102)

(333)
(0) (90) (163)

(353)
188 253

(3,236)
(3,009)
6,329

(224)
(104)
(696)

5773,569
(4,184)
1,858

(421)
7,460

7,193
(983)

(1,769)

525
7,204

(1,803)
9,776

(3,738)
16,540
(3,747)ill i§li21 (34)

ECL 2,053 8,438 13,725 24,216 1,549 8,272 11,038 20,859

Credit Quality

The Company has classified portfolio loans as financial assets at amortized cost and has assessed it at the collective pool level. The vintage analysis methodology has been used to 
create the PD term structure which incorporates both 12 month (Stage 1 Loans) and lifetime PD (Stage 2 and stage 3 Loans). The vintage analysis captures a vintage default 
experience across a particular portfolio by tracking the periodic slippages. The vintage slippage experience/default rate Is then used to build the PD term structure.

The vintage analysis methodology has been used to create the LGD vintage. The LGD vintage takes into account the recovery experience across accounts of a particular portfolio post 
default. The recoveries are tracked and discounted to the date of default using the effective interest rate.

Accordingly, the Company analysis exposure to credit risk on the basis of vintage experience across its products. The Company categorizes its loans Into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 
based on vintage experience.

As at 31 March 2022 (* lakhs) As at 31 March 2021 (* lakhs)
Particulars TotalStage 3Total Stage 1 Stage 2Stage 2 Stage 3Stage 1

14,505 3,93,983
55,794

(59,788)

3,70,803
55,794

(54,267)
1,350

(32,749)
(15,199)

8,67420,939 3,82,760
1,11,361
(76,912)

3,25,598
1,11,361
(69,740)

6,584
(22,068)

(6,472)

36,222Opening balance
New assets originated or purchased 
Assets derecognised/repaid/ recovery 
Net transfers to/from Stage 1 
Net transfers to/from Stage 2 
Net transfers to/from Stage 3 
Amounts written off

(67) (5,454)
(341)
(737)

19,928
(6,962)

(2,378)
(1,828)
(1,727)
13,937
(4,128)

(4,795)
(4,756)
23,795
(7,464)

(1,010)
33,487
(4,729)

0

(7,229)(133)(4,605) (134)(368)(109)
3,82,76036,222 20,9394,12,604 3,25,59824,81542,6343,45,154Closing balance

1,002 1,072 6,7744,7004,6641/497 1,181Interest accrued and other amortised cost 1,987

3,86,34637,224 22,0124,17,268 3,27,11025,99644,1313,47,141
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Trade receivables

Exposures to customers' outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Company to determine incurred and expected credit losses. Historical trends of 
collection from counterparties on timely basis reflects low level of credit risk. Company creates ECL on trade receivable balances in line with board's approved provisioning policy.

Cash and cash equivalents, other bank balance and other financial assets

The Company has a low credit risk In respect of its exposure with financial Institutions and other financial assets. Funds are invested after taking Into account parameters like safety, 
liquidity and post tax returns etc. The Company avoids concentration of credit risk by spreading them over several counterparties with good credit rating profile and sound financial 
position. The Company’s exposure and credit ratings of Its counterparties are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Company holds cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances with banks and financial institutions. The credit worthiness of such banks and financial Institutions is 
evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be high.

While exposure with respect to security deposit and advance given for business purpose is spread across and carry low credit exposure as the Company has possession of rental 
premises and other with whom the Company has worked with for a number of years.

Write off policy

The Company has laid down explicit policies on loan write-offs to deal with assets which are impaired due to customer's Inability to repay the loan.

Exposure to credit risk and Collateral management

The Company holds collateral like residential, commercial land & building against its secured portfolio loans such as housing loan, loan against properties, and developer funding.

The Company has a collateral management system to address the risks associated in the mortgage business. Onsite inspections by independent experts are carried out to satisfy that 
the value of the collateral Is sufficient to cover the associated credit risk and that the claim on property is legally enforceable. Credit policy guidelines clearly specify Loan to value 
(LTV) ratios and ensures a maximum permissible limit on exposure in any collateral backed funding. This takes care of any revaluation or depreciation in value of asset due to 
unforeseen circumstances.
The Collection team follows up with the customers through field visits as well as through telecommunication for payment of over dues. Collection team is also responsible for 
Initiating legal action Including repossession and selling of collaterals. In normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess properties or collaterals. Once 
contractual loan repayments are more than 90 days past due, repossession of property(ies) may be initiated under the provisions of the SARFAESI Act, 2002. Repossessed 
property(ies) is disposed of in the manner prescribed in the SARFAESI Act, 2002, to recover outstanding debt. For other collaterals the Company liquidates the assets and recovers the 
amount due against the loan. Negotiations with customers with respect to settlement of loans are also carried out by the authorised personnel from collection team. Any surplus 
funds are returned to the customers/obligors.

An estimate of the lower of fair value of collateral and other security enhancements held and carrying amounts of the financial assets as at the reporting date Is shown below. This 
excludes the value of collateral and other security enhancements that are determined not to be enforceable (legally or practically) by the Company.

Maximum 
exposure to 
credit risk

Collaterals
(Land&

building)*
As at 31 March 2022 (* In lakhs) Associated ECLsNet Exposure

Financial Assets
Cash & cash equivalents (Other than Cash in hand)
Loans (gross)
Trade receivables
Financial Assets at FVTPL (Other than investment in Government Securities) 
Other financial asset

43,567
4,17,268

43,567
(7,91,695) (24,217)12,08,963

51 51

2,825 2,825
Total Financial Asset 4,63,711 12,08,963 (7,45,252) (24,217)

Maximum 
exposure to 
credit risk

Collaterals 
(Land & 

building)*
As at 31 March 2021 (* in lakhs) Net Exposure Associated ECLs

Financial Assets
Cash & cash equivalents (Other than Cash in hand)
Loans (gross)
Trade receivables
Financial Assets at FVTPL (Other than Investment in Government Securities) 
Other financial asset

66,335
3,86,345

66,335
(7,18,411)11,04,756 (20,859)

68 68
15,932
4,101

15,932
4,101

Total Financial Asset 4,72,781 11,04,756 (6,31,975) (20,859)

*The value of the collateral for residential & commercial mortgage loans is based on the collateral value at origination. For credit-impaired loans the value of collateral is based on 
the most recent appraisals.

-k
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The below tables provide an analysis of the current fair values of collateral held and credit enhancements for stage 3 assets.

Fair value of collateral and credit enhancements held under the base case scenario

Maximum 
exposure to 
credit risk

Collaterals
(land&

building)
Loans (gross) Associated ECLsNet Exposure

As at 31 March 2022 in lakhs) 
As at 31 March 2021 (* In lakhs)

(40,565)
(12,803)

25,996
22,012

66,561
34,815

13,801
10,852

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk Is the risk that the Company, though solvent, either does not have sufficient financial resources available to meet its obligations as they fall due, or can secure them only 
at excessive costs. Liquidity risk management Involves estimating and managing the liquidity requirements of the Company within acceptable structural boundaries and In a cost- 
efficient manner, and involves the Board and senior management's development and oversight of a comprehensive process that identifies, measures, monitors and controls the 
Company's liquidity risk exposure.

The Company maintains a reliable management information system designed to provide the senior management with timely and forward-looking information on the liquidity 
position of the Company. In terms of actions, the Company's liquidity risk management policy is guided by the following principles:
1. Lender diversification demonstrated by an increase in lenders, across Instruments (bank finance, bonds, money market instruments, sell down of loan portfolio of loan portfolio) 
and liquidity pools (banks, mutual funds, insurance companies, pension funds, foreign portfolio investors)
2. Matching of asset and liability tenor

3. Maintenance of adequate liquidity buffer as per internal policy
4. Structural liquidity mismatch

Tools to manage Liquidity Risk

The Company manages Its liquidity risk through liquidity gap analysis, monitoring concentration limits (tenor, counterparty and instrument type) and liquidity ratios.

Projected rolling cash flow for the next 6 months is prepared which provides a gap analysis of expected cash inflow and outflow on a given date. Treasury is responsible to prepare a 
suitable funding plan based on the cash flow.

Single lender limit, single financial Instrument or category limit and negative gap mismatches are monitored on a monthly basis to ensure these are within the policy limits.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents and by having access to funding through an adequate amount of committed credit lines. The 
Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines to meet obligations when due.

Analysis of financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities

The tables below analyse the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all financial liabilities for which the contractual 
maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

As at 31 March 2022 In lakhs) Carrying value Within 1 year After s years Total1 to S years
Financial liabilities 
Trade payables
Borrowings other than debt securities
Debt Securities (including Subordinated liabilities)
Lease liabilities
Otherflnancial liabilities (excluding lease liabilities)

353 353 353
2,57,890
1,08,061

2,079
14,708

1,02,494
21,653

1,85,107
92,402

1,937

2,019
12,703

2,89,619
1,26,759

2,577
14,708

575 65
14,708

As at 31 March 2021 (t in lakhs) Carrying value Within 1 year After 5 years Total1 to 5 years
Financial liabilities 
Trade payables
Borrowings other than debt securities 
Debt Securities

296 296 296
2,86,263
1,07,403

1,831
12,574

86,967
28,954

2,41,427
88,972

1,565

1,313
10,231

3,29,706
1,28,157

2,340
12,574

Lease liabilities
Other financial liabilities (excluding lease liabilities)

433 342
12,574

* The interest payments on variable interest rate loans in the table above reflect Interest rates at the reporting date and these amount may change as market interest rates change.

The Company's expected cash flows on some financial assets and financial liabilities vary significantly from the contractual cash flows. As part of the management of liquidity risk 
arising from financial liabilities, the Company holds liquid assets comprising cash and cash equivalents to meet liquidity requirements. In addition, the Group maintains agreed lines of 
credit with other banks to maintain the liquidity requirements.

Financing arrangement

The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:
As at As at

31 March 2021 
(* lakhs)

Particulars 31 March 2022 
(* lakhs)

66,000 40,000Expiring within one year
Expiring beyond one year (term loan)

The bank term loan facilities may be drawn at any time in ^ and have an average maturity of 2.9 years (2021:1 year),Subject to maintenance of satisfactory credit ratings. In addition 
to above , the company also have undrawn bank overdraft facilities 112,500 lakhs (31 March 2021: *12,500 lakhs) which may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the 
bank without notice.

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows related to financial instrument that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices (such 
as foreign exchange rates, interest rates, other prices). The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related to currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

Competitions Risk
Company offers a range of mortgage products such as home loan, loans against property and construction of real estate. These are provided to a broad segment of customers 
including salaried and self-employed personnel and corporates. We face competition primarily from other MFCs. The major competitive factors among the peer group are an 
extensive branch network, greater funding capabilities, wider range of products and services, and advanced technology offerings.
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Foreign Currency Risk

The Company has no foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities. Accordingly, there is no exposure to currency risk.)
Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices and related market variables whether caused by factors specific to 
an individual Investment, Its issuer and market.

To manage its price risk arising from investments, the Company has invested in the mutual fund after considering the risk and return profile of the mutual funds i.e. the debt profile 
of the mutual fund Indicates that the debt has been given to creditworthy banks and other institutional parties and equity Investment is made after considering the performance of 
the stock.

The Company's exposure to price risk arises from investments In unlisted equity securities, debt securities, units of mutual funds, which are classified as financial assets at Fair Value 
through Profit and Loss and amounts to as follows:

As at As at
31 March 2021 

ft lakhs)
Particulars 31 March 2022 

H lakhs)
Exposure to price risk 2,499 30,750

Sensitivity analysis
The table below sets out the effect on profit or loss due to reasonable possible weakening/strengthening In prices of 5%:

As at
31 March 2022 

H lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

K lakhs)
Effect on profit or loss (* lakhs)

Impact on profit before tax for 5% increase in prices 
Impact on profit before tax for 5% decrease in prices

(16) (384)
16 384

Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk is the vulnerability of the Compan/s financial condition to adverse movements in market interest rates, it corresponds to the potential effects of interest rate 
changes on the Company's profitability, In particular net interest income. Exposure to this risk primarily results from timing spread In the re-pricing of both on and off-balance sheet 
assets and liabilities as they mature (fixed rate instruments) or contractual re-pricing (floating rate instruments). The objective of interest rate risk policy is to establish boundaries on 
interest rate risk exposure for the Company and the governance and monitoring policies for interest rate risk management.

The exposure of the Company's borrowing to Interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

As at
31 March 2022 

ft lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

ft lakhs)
Particular

Fixed rate borrowings
Debt Securities* 
Commercial paper 

Variable rate borrowings

72,400 87,400
7,500

2,91,8502,90,406
Total borrowings 3,62,806 3,86,750
* Includes Subordinated liabilities

The following metrics are employed for measurement of interest rate risks:

- Repricing Gap analysis - measured by calculating gaps over different time intervals as at a given date, and measures mismatches between rate sensitive liabilities and rate sensitive 
assets (Including off-balance sheet positions).

- Sensitivity analysis - interest rate sensitivity is monitored as per interest rate simulations, viz. potential loss due to an adverse movement In interest rates of 100 bps for mismatch 
up to 1 year.

Sensitivity analysis

As at
31 March 2022 

ft lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

ft lakhs)
Effect on profit or loss (V lakhs)

Impact on profit before tax of 100 bps increase In interest rate 
Impact on profit before tax of 100 bps decrease In interest rate

(2,904)
2,904

(2,919)
2,919

Financial Instrument

a. Classification and Fair Values of Financial Assets 8i Liabilities

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities as at reporting date :

As at As at
31 March 2021 

ft lakhs)
31 March 2022 

ft lakhs)Particular

Amortised CostAmortised CostFVTPL FVTPL

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalent
Sank balances other than cash and cash equivalent
Trade Receivables
Loans and advances to customers
Investments
Other financial assets

3,680
39,955

6,818
59,566

51 68
3,93,051 3,65,486

30,7502,499
4,1012,825

30,750 4,36,0392,499 4,39,562Total financial assets
Financial liabilities:
Trade payables 
Debt securities 
Subordinated liabilities 
Borrowing other than debt securities 
Other financial liabilities

296353
98,285
9,776

2,57,890
16,787

1,00,186
7,218

2,86,263
14,405

4,08,3683,83,091Total financial liabilities

Fair Value of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, loans and advances to customers, other financial assets, trade payables 
and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to shortterm maturities of these instruments.
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b. Fair value hierarchy

As per Ind AS 107, 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures', the fair values of the financial assets or financial liabilities are defined as the price that would be received on sale of asset or 
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or unobservable. The hierarchy gives the highest 
priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and lowest priority to unobservable inputs.

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial Instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) 
measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the Inputs used in determining fair 
value, the company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the Ind AS 107. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

The hierarchy used Is as follows:
Level 1 • Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2- Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are 
neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

a) Financial assets measured at FVTPL at each reporting date

Particular Level 1 Level 2
As at As at

31 March 2021 
lakhs)

As at
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)

As at
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)
Investment 2,499 14,818 15,932
Total 2,499 14,818 15,932

b) Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost at each reporting date

As at 31 March 2022 ft lakhs)
Particular Fair ValueCarrying Value

level 2 level 3
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 
Loans and advances to customers *
Other financial assets

4,17,268
2,825

4,17,268
2,832

Total 4,20,093 4,20,100
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Debt securities
Subordinated liabilities
Borrowing other than debt securities
Lease liabilities

98,285
9,776

2,57,890
2,079

98,557
9,478

2,57,890
2,192

Total 3,68,030 3,68,117

As at 31 March 2021 (* lakhs)
Particular Fair valueCarrying Value

level 2 level 3
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Loans and advances to customers *
Other financial assets 

3,86,345
4,101

3,86,345
4,111

Total 3,90/446 3,90/456
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Debt securities
Subordinated liabilities
Borrowing other than debt securities
Lease liabilities

1,00,186
7,218

2,86,263
1,831

1,00,005
7,385

2,86,263
1,913

Total 3,95,498 3,95,566
'Gross value of loans

Fair value of financials assets and financial liabilities at amortized cost (i.e., Loans and advances to customers, Other financial assets, Debt securities. Borrowing other than debt 
securities) is calculated on pool basis at present values of future cashflows over expected tenure of financial instruments.

Following discounting factor are used for calculation of fair values:

Discounting factorsParticulars
These are floating advances hence fair value equals to amortised costLoans and advances to customers

Other financial assets. Debt securities, Borrowing other than debt securities Incremental cost of funds as at reporting date

Valuation techniques used to determine fair value

The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price (fair value of the consideration given or received). Subsequent to initial recognition, the 
Company determines the fair value of financial instruments that are quoted In active markets using the quoted bid prices (financial assets held) or quoted ask prices (financial 
liabilities held) and using valuation techniques for other instruments. Valuation techniques include discounted cash flow method, market comparable method, recent transactions 
happened In the company and other valuation models.

The Company measures financial instruments, such as investments (other than equity investments in Subsidiaries), derivative financial instruments, etc. at fair value.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

TechniquesEach class of financial assets
The fair value is determined by applying direct quotes available from the active market for suchGovernment securities
securities.
The fair value for such securities is determined by applying benchmark yield available in the public
domain. ___________________________________ __

Certificate of Deposits

o
tV\P

$ *
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In order to assess Level 3 valuations as per Company's investment policy, the management reviews the performance of the Investec companies on a regular basis by tracking their 
latest available financial statements / financial Information, valuation report of independent valuers, recent transaction results etc. which are considered In valuation process.

The finance department of the Company includes the team that performs the valuation of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes, Including level 3 fair 
value. Discussions on valuation processes and results arc held between the valuation team and the senior management at least once every six months which Is In line with the 
Company's half yearly reporting periods.

SO Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities

As at 31 March 2022 lakhs) As at 31 March 2021 (< lakhs)
Particulars Within 12 After 12 

months
Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total Totalmonths
Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Trade receivables
Loans and advances *
Other financial assets 

Non Financial assets 
Current tax assets (net)
Deferred tax asset (net)
Other non financial assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Right of use assets 
Other Intangible assets 
Intangible assets under development

3,680
39,955

2,499

3,680
39,955
2,499

6,818
59,566
30,750

6.818
59,566
30,750

51 51 66 68
57,430 3,35,621

2,228
3,93,051

2,825
39,448

3,981
3,26,037 3,65,486

4,101598 120

1,350
6,560

1,350 621 621
6,560 5,638 5,638

326 336 662 423 152 575
27B 278 456 456

1,858 1,858 1,646 1,646
170 170 197 197

11 11 0 0
Total Assets 1,04,538 3,48,411 4,52,950 1,41,053 3,34,869 4,75,923
Financial liabilities 

Trade payables 
Debt Securities 
Subordinated liabilities 
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities 

Non-FInandal liabilities 
Provisions
Other non financial liabilities

353 353 296 296
17,412 80,873

9,372
1,71,113

2,259

98,285
9,776

2,57,890
16,787

32,371 67,815
6,936

2,25,317
2,162

1,00,186
7,218

2,86,263
14,405

404 282
86,777
14,528

60,946
12,243

817 69 886 370 175 545
1,718 1,718 1,008 467 1,475

Equity
Equity share capital 
Other equity

30,803
36,452

30,803
36,452

30,803
34,731

30,803
34,731

Total liabilities 1,22,009 3,30,941 4,52,950 1,07,517 3,68,406 4,75,922

* Loans and advance arc classified basis management estimation of future inflows and outflows which have been relied by auditors.

51 Estimation uncertainty due to COVID 19

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and the resultant lockdowns have caused disruption to businesses and slowdown in economic activities. The Impact of the COVID -19 pandemic 
on the Company's results, Including credit quality and provisions, remain uncertain. The Company's impairment loss allowance estimates arc Inherently uncertain and, as a result, 
actual results may differ from these estimates. The Company has factored Its risk assessment majoriy through its expected credit loss model (ECL). The Company has been duly 
servicing Its debt obligations, maintains a healthy capital adequacy ratio and has adequate capital and financial resources to run Its business and meet its committed obligations for 
the foreseeable future. The Company will continue to closely monitor material changes In markets and future economic conditions with regard to COVID-19 Implications.

52 Additional Regulatory Information under MCA Notification dated March 24,2021

a. Details of Benaml Property held: There ore no proceedings which have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benam! property under the Bcnaml 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

b. Additional Information where borrowings are from banks or financial institutions;

(i) The revised quarterly returns and statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions for the quarter ended June 21, Sept 21 and Dec 21 are In 
agreement with the books of accounts. Further for quarter ended Mar 22 the company has filed the provisional return and statement which will be revised subsequently based on 
audited numbers;

(II) The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken as at the balance sheet dote

e. Wilful Defaulter: The Company has not been declared as Wilful Defaulter by any Bank or Financial Institution or other Lender.

d. Relationship with Struck off Companies : During the year, the Company docs not hove any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 
or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.
e. Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC): In case of borrowings, there arc no charges or satisfaction pending for registration with ROC beyond 
the statutory period.
f. Compliance with number of layers of companies: The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies 
(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

g. Ratios:

As at
31 March 2021 

(R lakhs)

As at
31 March 2022 

(R lakhs)
Particulars

24.32K
21.2696

3.0696

24.3096
20.2596

4.0596

Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR) (96) 
Tier ICRAR (96)
Tier II CRAR (96)

NA* NALiquidity Coverage Ratio (96)
• As per Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies Issued by RBI, llqudity coverage ratio is not applicable for 
deposit taking NBFC with asset size less than R 5,000 acre as at 31 March 2022

non-



Fullerton India Home Finance Company limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 
31 March 2022

h. Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements: The Company has no entered in any such arrangments during the year 
I. Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:
During the financial year ended March 31, 2022, other than the transactions undertaken in the normal course of business and In accordance with extant regulatory guidelines as 
applicable.

(i) . No funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or Invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
(ii) . No funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified In any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

j. Undisclosed Income: The Company does not have any transactions not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year In the 
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961). Also, there are nil previously unrecorded 
income and related assets.

k. Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency: The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

53 Details of Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety
During the year, the Company has sold some loans and advances measured at amortised costas per assignment deals, as a source of finance. As per the terms of deal, since the 
derecognition criteria as per IND AS 109, includingtransferof substantially ail the risks and rewards relating to assets being transferred to the buyer being met, the assets have been 
derecognised. The management has evaluated the impact of the assignment transactions done during the year for its business model. Based on the future business plans, the 
Compan/s business model remains to hold the assets for collecting contractual cash flows.

The table below summarises the carrying amount of the derecognised financial assets measured at amortised costand the gain/(loss) on derecognition:

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

H lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

lakhs)
Particulars

Carrying amount of derecognised financial assets 
Gain from derecognition for the year

3,998 5,276
319 498

As at
31 March 2022 

lakhs)

As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 

lakhs)
Carrying amount of continuing involvement In derecognised financial assets 5,161 4,494

0



Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 
31 March 2022

53 As required by the RBI circular no. DNBS.CO.PO.No. 367/03.10.01/2013-14 dated 23 January 2014, the details of accounts restructured during the year ended 31 March 2022 are given below:

lakhs)
Type of 

restructuring
Fresh restructuring during the yearNo Restructuring Account as on 

31 March 2021
Upgradations to restructured standard 

category during the FY
Restructured standard advances which 

cease to attract higher provisioning and / or 
additional risk weight at the end of the FY 

and hence need not be shown as 
restructured standard advances at the 

beginning of the next FY

Downgradations of Restructured 
accounts during the FY

Write-offs of restructured accounts 
during the FY

Restructured accounts as on 
31 March 2022

Amount 
outstanding as 
at 31 March 

2022

Amount 
outstanding as 
at 31 March 

2022

Amount 
outstanding 

as at 31 
March 2022

Amount 
outstanding 

as at 31 
March 2022

No of 
borrowers

No of 
borrowers

Asset
Classification

Amount
outstanding

Provision
thereon

Provision
thereon

No of 
borrowers

Provision
thereon

No of 
borrowers

No of 
borrowers

Provision
thereon

No of 
borrowers

No of 
borrowers

Provision
thereon

Provision
thereon

Amount
outstanding

Provision
thereon

Amount
outstanding

CDR1
standard
Substandard
Doubtful
Loss
Total
Others2
Standard
Substandard
Doubtful
Loss
Total

7 93 55 1 1 0 (0)0 (7) (95) (55) 11 0
1 (6)1 6 947 95 55 61

7 93 55 1 1 0 J6)1 1 7 95 62
Grand Total3
Standard
Substandard
Doubtful
Loss
Total

7 93 55 1 1 0 (0) (2)0 (7) (95) (55) 1 0
1 (6)1 7 6 9495 55 61

7 93 55 1 1 0 1 J6)1 7 95 62
Note:
1. The outstanding amount and number of borrowers as at 31 March 2022 is after considering recoveries and sale of assets during the year.
2. The provision in the above table includes general loan loss provision and other provisions held on the restructured advances.
3. For the purpose of arithmetical accuracy as required by circular, movement in provisions in the existing restructured account as compared to opening balance is disclosed under column fresh restructuring (for increase in provision) and write-off/sale/recovery (for decrease in provision) during the year and are not comparable 
with the additional facilities availed and partial recovery disclosed under the respective columns.
4. M5ME details____________________________________________________________
No. of MSME accounts Amount outstanding as on 31 

March 2022
Amount outstanding as on 

31 March 2021
31 3



54 ADDmONAL DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY NHB
Disclosures as required in Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company 
DOR.FIN.HFC.CC.No.120/0S.10.136/2020-21) dated February 17,2021. These have been prepared on the basis of INDAS financials in line with Master Direction.

Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 (RBI/2020-21/73

I) Capital to Risk Assets Ratio ('CRAR')

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021Particular

24.30%
20.25%

4.05%
9,500

24.32%
21.26%

3.06%
7,000

CRAR(%)
CRAR-Tier! Capital (%)
CRAR-Tier II Capital (%)
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-11 capital (^ lakhs) 
Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments (T lakhs)

ii) Reserve Fund u/s 29 C of NHB Act, 1987
The Company has created a reserve fund as required by section 29C of National Housing Bank Act, 1987, wherein a sum equal to twenty percent of its profit every year, as disclosed in the 
profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared, is transferred. The Special Reserve qualifies for deduction as specified u/s 36 (1) (viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and accordingly, 
the Company has been availing tax benefits for such transfers.

As at
31 March 2022 

(t lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)
Particular

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Amount of Special Reserve u/s 36(l)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

509 509

Addition / Appropriation / Withdrawal during the year 
Add:
Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Amount of Special Reserve u/s 36{l)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

337

Less:
Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Amount of Special Reserve u/s 36(l)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

Balance at the end of the year
Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Amount of Special Reserve u/s 36{l)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

847 509

ill) Investments

As at
31 March 2022 

(? lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)
Particulars

Value of Investments
Gross Value of Investments (at fair value) 

In India 
Outside India

Provisions for depreciation 
In India 
Outside India 

Net Value of Investments
in India
Outside India 

2,499 30,750

2,499 30,750

Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on Investments 
Opening balance
Add: Provisions made during the year
Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year
Closing balance

iv) Derivatives
a. Forward Rate Agreement (FRA) / Interest Rate Swap (IRS)

As at
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

(7 lakhs)
Particulars

(i) The notional principal of swap agreements
(ii) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfil their obligations under the agreements
(iii) Collateral required by the HFC upon entering into swaps
(iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps
(v) The fair value of the swap book________________________________________________________

Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil

^ O'o

*
s? C.K



b. Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivative
As at

31 March 2022 
(* lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)
Particular

Nil Nil([) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during the year ended
(ii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding as on year ended
(iii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective" 
(i) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective"

Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil

c. Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives
The Company is not carrying out any activity of providing derivative cover to third parties.

d. Qualitative Disclosure

(i) All hedging activities are carried out by Centralised treasury department possessing the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. The Company's policy Is to hedge the exposure by 
taking derivative instruments and not to trade in derivatives for speculative purposes. By using derivative financial instruments to hedge exposures to changes in interest rates and foreign 
exchange risk. The company minimises counterparty credit risk in derivative instruments by entering into transactions with high-quality counterparties.

(ii) The Company has a risk management policy to enter into derivatives to manage the risk associated with external commercial borrowings. The following table highlights the key aspects of 
the policy:

a) Treasury and Risk function is authorised to elect appropriate derivative instrument:,

b) The Company shall fully hedge the risk on account of foreign currency fluctuation and change interest rate towards external commercial borrowing;

c) Market/Price risk arising from the fluctuations of interest rates and foreign exchange rates or from other factors shall be closely monitored and controlled and reported in ALCO.

d) The Company has a hedging policy in place which mandates to have a hedge relation established before a derivative transaction is entered into. The Company ensures that the hedging 
effectiveness is monitored continuously during the life of the derivative contract;

e) The Company has put in place accounting policy covering recording hedge and non-hedge transactions, recognition of income, premiums and discounts; valuation of outstanding contracts; 
provisioning and credit risk mitigation.

e. Quantitative Disclosure

As at 31 March 2022 (* lakhs) As at 31 March 2021 (* lakhs)
Currency 
derivative 
(* lakhs)

Interest rate 
Derivatives 
(* lakhs)

Currency 
derivative 
(* lakhs)

Interest rate 
Derivatives 
(* lakhs)

Particulars

Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount) for hedging 
Marked to Market Positions
a) Asset
b) Liability 
Credit Exposure
Unhedged Exposures________________________

Nil Nil Nil Nil

Nil Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil Nil

v) Securitization

a) The Company has not entered into any agreement for securitisation. Hence, no disclosure is made for the same.

b) Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction
During the year Company has not sold financials asset to securitisation/ reconstruction company for asset reconstruction.

c) Assignment

Details of Assignment transactions Undertaken by the Company during the year

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(< lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)
Particular

Number of loans assigned 
Amount of loans assigned 
Weighted average maturity (in months) 
Weighted average holding period (in months) 
Retention of beneficial economic interest 
Coverage of tangible security*
Rating-wise distribution of rated loans______

62 325
3,998 5,276

150 161
36 25
5% 10%

100%
Not applicable

100%
Not applicable

•for secured loans
The Company did not transfer or acquire stressed loans during the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.



d) Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold

(i) Details of non performing financial assets purchased during the year:

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)
Particular

No. of accounts purchased during the year 
Aggregate outstanding 
Of these, number of accounts restructured 
Aggregate outstanding________________

NIL NIL

(ii) Details of non performing financial assets sold* :

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

lakhs)
Particular

No. of accounts sold during the year 
Aggregate outstanding 
Aggregate consideration received

77
2,904
1,191

•Includes sale of written off portfolio

v) Asset Liability Management Maturity pattern of certain Items of Assets and Liabilities:

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 ft lakhs) # As at 31 March 2021 (* lakhs) #
Market

Borrowings
Bank

Borrowings
Bank

Borrowings
Market

Borrowings
Advances* AdvancesInvestments Investments

1-7 days
8-14 days
Up to 30/31 days
Over 1 month upto 2 Months
Over 2 months upto Smooths
Over 3 months & up to 6 months
Over 6 Months & up to 1 year
Over 1 year & up to 3 years
Over 3 years & up to 5 years
Over 5 years & up to 7 years

4,612 2,499 3,862 36
898 675

1,951
4,357
4,635

14,856
26,121
72,226
48,531

2,14,864

3,346
3,393

14,328
20,590
45,120

1,38,307
31,163

1,643

957 3,375
2,560
6,155

18,322
30,499

1,62,439
54,901

12,949
1,4081,413 1,731

2,026
8,327

21,871
68,318
43,025

2,14,695

207 1,459
19,687
9,604

207
1,656

14,540
78,800

2,078
9,367

10,420
7,670

60,800
14,600

6,515813
Total 3,93,051 2,499 2,57,890 1,08,061 3,65,486 30,750 2,79,099 1,14,568
•Advance as at year end are disclosed as per behavioral pattern.
# Amounts are at carrying value 
Note:
1) The Company does not have any deposits, foreign currency assets and liabilites as on 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
2) Based on Management estimation of future inflows and outflows which have been relied by auditors.

vi) Exposures

a) Exposure to real estate sector

As at
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)
Particular

Direct exposure
Residential Mortgages - Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented 4,01,064 3,60,517

Commercial Real Estate - Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings, retail space, multi-purpose commercial premises, 
multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and 
construction, etc.). Exposure would also include non-fund based limits

47,308 41,744

Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures -
a) Residential
b) Commercial Real Estate

Indirect Exposure - Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 4,48,372 4,02,261

Exposure amount includes principal outstanding, Interest accrued thereon, undrawn amount and other adjustments for gross carrying value. The Company provides loans against property 
which are fully collateralized against a residential property, commercial property. All Residential collateral are reported under residential mortgage while commercials (including commercial 
real estate, shops, hotels and Industry) collateral are reported as commercial real estate. The end use of the loan may be business in case of a business customer or could be personal in case of 
a salaried and individual customer.



b) Exposure to capital market

The Company has no exposure to the capital markets directly or indirectly in the current and previous year.

As at
31 March 2022 

lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

H lakhs)
Particulars

a) Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not 
exclusively invested in corporate debt;

b) Advances against shares/bonds/debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), 
convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds;

c) Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as 
primary security;

d) Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of 
equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares/convertible bonds/convertible debentures / units of equity oriented 
mutual funds 'does not fully cover the advances;
e) Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers;

f) Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares/bonds/debentures or other securities or on the clean basis for meeting promoter's 
contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising resources;

g) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows/issues;
h) All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered)

NilNil

Nil Nil

NilNil

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

NilNil
Total Exposure to Capital Market

c) Details of financing of parent company products

The Company does not finance any of it's holding/parent company products.

d) Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBFC

The Company has not lent / invested / lent and invested in any borrower / group of borrower in excess of limits prescribed by the NHB.

e) Unsecured advances

The Company does not have any unsecured advances in the form of rights, licenses, authorisations, etc. that are charged as collateral for the purposes of financing. The Company does not 
have any unsecured advances. For details refer note 6 Loans and Advances

vli) Exposure to group companies engaged in real estate business (refer to Paragraph 21 of these directions)

Description Amount ({in 
Lakhs)

% of owned fund

(i) Exposure to any single entity in a group engaged in real estate business
(ii) Exposure to all entities in a group engaged in real estate business

Nil Nil
Nil Nil

vlil) Registration with other financial sector

Name of Regulator Status Registration Details
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority CA0492 valid till April BO, 2020Corporate Agent

lx) During the year NHB had imposed a penalty of { Nil (31March 2021:{ 11,800) for contravention of paragraph 22 and 27Aofthe Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Direction 2010.

x) Refer note 36 for related party transactions during the current and previous year.

Diagrammatic representation of group structure
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xl) Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

For the year ended 31 March 2022 For the year ended 31 March 2021
Particulars

CARE CRISiL CARE CRISIL
Non convertible debentures/ Sub debt AAA Stable AAA Stable AAA Stable AAA Stable

AAA Stable AAA Stable AAA Stable AAA StableTerm Loan
Short term debt / Comercial Paper A1+ A1+A1+ A1+
Ratings are subject to annual surveillance.



xil) Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies.

The Company has not debited any prior period items in statement of profit & loss during the current year/previous year, 
xiii) Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors

Refer note 36 for related party transactions for remuneration paid to non- executive directors during the current and previous year.

xiv) Management: Refer the Management Discussion and Analysis section

xv) Revenue recognition.

There has been no instance of revenue recognition being postponed pending resolution of significant uncertainties.

xvl) Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head Expenditure in the Statement of Profit & Loss Account

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)
Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account

Expected credit loss provision towards NPA portfolio loans 
Provision made towards income tax (incl. adj. for tax of earlier period) 
Provisions for depreciation on Investment 
Other Provision and Contingencies
Provision for Standard Assets (with details like teaser loan, CRE, CRE-RH etc.) 

-Housing
-Non Housing (incl. CRE)______________________________________

2,874
1,497

3,908
843

341 214

(566)
1,048

3,542
3,155

The total provision carried by the Company in terms of paragraph 15 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, as follows:-

As at 31 March 2022 (* lakhs) As at 31 March 2021 lakhs)
Break up of Loan & Advances and Provisions thereon

Housing Non Housing Housing Non Housing
Standard Assets

a) Total Outstanding Amount
b) Provisions made 

Sub-Standard Assets
a) Total Outstanding Amount
b) Provisions made 

Doubtful Assets - Category-1
a) Total Outstanding Amount
b) Provisions made 

Doubtful Assets - Category-ll
a) Total Outstanding Amount
b) Provisions made 

Doubtful Assets - Category-Ill
a) Total Outstanding Amount
b) Provisions made 

Loss Assets
a) Total Outstanding Amount
b) Provisions made

2,29,801
5,353

1,61,471
5,138

2,08,868
5,919

1,55,831
4,089

6,774
3,602

8,299
3,906

6,798
3,530

10,176
5,022

3,744
1,864

5,376
2,894

3,068
1,537

1,575
747

1,456
1,258

347 29
201 14

TOTAL
a) Total Outstanding Amount
b) Provisions made________

2,41,775
12,077

1,75,493
12,139

2,18,763
11,001

1,67,582
9,859

xvli) Draw down from reserves

The Company has not withdrawn any amount from any of the reserves during the year ended 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: Nil)

xviil) Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

(a) Concentration of Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits during the current and previous year. Also there are no outstanding deposit from earlier years.

(b) Concentration of Loans and Advances

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)
Particular

Total advances to twenty largest borrowers
Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances of the Company

12,287 12,809
2.9% 3.3%

(c) Concentration of all Exposures (Including off-balance sheet exposure)

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)
Particular

Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers (Amount includes carrying value of loans and undrawn loan commitment) 
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to Total Exposure of the Company on borrowers / customers

14,25717,557
3.9% 3.5%

(d) Concentration of Non Performing Accounts

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)
Particular

3,431 3,213Total Exposure to top ten NPA accounts



(e) Sector-wise Non performing accounts

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

(* lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)
Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances In that sector

Housing Loans
Individuals 
Buider/Project loans 
Corporates 
Others

Non Housing Loans
Individuals 
Buider/Project loans 
Corporates 
Others

5.04%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

4.57%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

8.22%
0.00%
3.65%
0.00%

7.11%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

xlx) Movement of NPAs

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

ft lakhs)
Particulars

Net NPA to Net Advances (%) 
Movement of Gross NPAs

(a) Opening Balance
(b) additions during the year
(c) Reductions during the Year
(d) Closing Balance

3.04% 2.85%

21,647
64,161
59,812

15,334
25,055
18,742

25,996 21,647
Movement in provisions for NPAs 

(a) Opening Balance
(a) Provisions made during the year
(b) Write off / Write back of excess provisions

10,852
24,229
21,355

6,944
9,785
5,877

13,725 10,852
Movement in Net NPAs

(a) Opening Balance
(b) additions during the year
(c) Reductions during the Year
(d) Closing Balance_________

10.795 
39,272
37.796

8,390
15,270
12,865

12,271 10,795
Note:
On 12 November 2021, the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) had issued circular no. RBI/2021-2022/125 DOR.STR.REC.68/21.04.048/2021-22, requiring changes to and clarifying certain aspects of 
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning norms (IRACP norms) pertaining to Advances. On 15 February 2022, the RBI had issued another circular no. RBI/2021-2022/158 
DOR.STR.REC.85/21.04.048/2021-22 pertaining to upgrade non performing assets, allowing the company to put in place the necessary system to implement the provisions till 30 September 
2022. Accordingly, the company have considered RBI circular dated 15th Feb'22 for its NPA classification and upgradation.

xx) In terms of requirement of NHB’s Circular No. NHB (NO) /DRS/ Pol.Circular. 61/2013-14 dated 07 April, 2014 following information on Reserve Fund under section 29C of the National 
Housing Bank Act, 1987 Is provided :
(refer note no. 54 (ii))

xxl) Overseas Assets

As at
31 March 2022 

ft lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

ft lakhs)
Particulars

N.A N.A N.A

xxil) Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored which are required to be consolidated as per accounting Norms

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021Particulars

N.A N.AN.A



xxili) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture company, hence the disclosure is not applicable. Further the consolidated financial statementsisnot applicable to the 
company

xxiv) Asset classification based on circular no. RBI/2019-20/170 dated 13 March 2020

Year ended 31 March 2022(^lakhs)

Difference 
between Ind AS 

109 provisions and 
IRACP norms

Loss Allowances 
(Provisions) as 
required under 

Ind AS 109

Provisions 
required as per 

IRACP norms

Gross Carrying 
Amount as per Ind

Asset classification as per Ind AS Net Carrying 
Amount

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms 109
AS

5=(3)-(4) 7=(4)-{6)63 42
Performing Assets

1,853
8,417

3,45,290

35,713
1,317 535Stage 1 

Stage 2 
Stage 3

3,47,141

44,131
Standard

567 7,850

0

3,91,272 10,271 3,81,003 1,884 8,385Subtotal
Non-Performing Assets (NPA) 
Substandard 
Doubtful 

up to 1 year 
1 to 3 years 
More than 3 years 
Subtotal for doubtful

Stage 3 15,002 7,509 7,493 2,258 5,251

Stage 3 
Stage 3 
Stage 3

9,177
1,817

4,758

1,459
4,419 2,523 2,235

359 766 693

10,995 6,217 4,778 3,289 2,928
Loss Stage 3
Subtotal of NPA 25,996 13,725 12,271 5,547 8,179
Other items such as guarantees, loan commitments, etc. which are In 
the scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered under current Income 
Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) norms

Stage 1 
Stage 2

37,876 200 37,676 200

108 21 87 21

Stage 3
Subtotal 37,984 221 37,764 221

Stage 1 
Stage 2 
Stage3

3,85,017

44,239

25,996

2,053

8,438

13,725

3,82,966
35,801

12,271

1,317 735

567 7,871
8,179

Total
5,547

Total 4,55,252 24,217 4,31,038 7,431 16,784

Year ended 31 March 202lWakhs)
Loss Allowances 
(Provisions) as 
required under 

Ind AS 109

Difference 
between Ind AS 

109 provisions and 
IRACP norms

Gross Carrying 
Amount as per Ind

Provisions 
required as per 

IRACP norms

Asset classification as per Ind AS Net Carrying 
Amount

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms 109
AS

5s(3).(4)2 3 6 7g(4)-(6)4
Performing Assets

Stage 1 
Stage 2 
Stage 3

3,27,110
37,224

1,529
8,266

3,25,581

28,958
1,211
1,050

318Standard
7,215

365 140 224 1 139
Subtotal 3,64,699 9,935 3,54,763 2,263 7,672
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard

Doubtful
Stage 3 16,975 8,553 8,422 2,551 6,002

Stage 3 
Stage 3 
Stage 3

up to 1 year 
1 to 3 years 
More than 3 years 
Subtotal for doubtful

4,643 2,285 2,359 1,290 994
29 14 14 11 4

4,672 2,299 1,3012,373 998
Loss Stage 3
Subtotal of NPA 21,647 10,852 10,795 3,852 7,000
Other Items such as guarantees, loan commitments, etc. which are in 
the scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered under current Income 
Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) norms

Stage 1 
Stage 2 
Stage 3

21,109 20 21,089 20
431437 6 6

46 243 46289
Subtotal 21,763 7221,835 72

Stage 1 
Stage 2 
Stage 3

3,48,220

37,661
22,300

1,549
8,272

11,038

3,46,670

29,389
11,262

1,211
1,050
3,853

338

7,222

7,184
Total

Total 3,87,3214,08,181 20,859 6,115 14,744
1. Total Gross carrying amount represents loans at amortised costas per Note 6. Other items in column 3 include undrawn loan commitments.
2. ECL provisioning is presented at the portfolio level for each stage while the Provisions required as per IRACP norms are presented in accordance with RBI/NHB guidelines and circular 
reference dated 17 April 2020.
3. Interest on NPA portfolio is not recognized under IRAP norms, while interest on Stage 3 assets is accounted as net of ECL provision and forms part of carrying value of portfolio loans.



xxv) Details of Principal Business Criteria as per Paragraph 4.1.7:

As at
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

(t lakhs)
Particular

Housing Finance Assets of its total assets netted off by intangible assets 51.52% 43.84%
Individual Housing Finance assets of its total assets netted off by intangible assets 50.32% 43.34%

xxvi) Disclosure on complaints

As at
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)

As at
31 March 2021 

(' lakhs)
Particular

No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 
No. of complaints received during the year 
No. of complaints redressed during the year 
No. of complaints pending at the end of the year

7 4
167 145
170 142

4 7

xxvll) The details of frauds noticed / reported are as below:

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

(' lakhs)
Particular

Amount Involved 
Amount Recovered 
Amount written off/provided 
Balance

45 120
0

45 119

xxviii) The Company does not have any outstanding loan against gold jewelleries as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: R Nil).

xxix) Details of stressed loans transferred or acquired based on RBI Circular No. RBI/DOR/2021-22/86 dated 21 Sepetember 2021
Year ended 31 March 2022(R1akhs)

To permitted 
transferee

To other 
transferees

To ARCS
Details of stressed loans transferred during the year (to be made separately for loans classified as NPA and SMA) (all amounts in Rs. Crore)
No. of accounts Nil Nil Nil
Aggregate principal outstanding of loans transferred 
Weighted average residual tenor of the loans transferred 
Net book value of loans transferred (at the time of transfer)
Aggregate consideration
Aggregate consideration Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years

Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil
Nil Nil Nil

Year ended 31 March 2022(Rlakhs)
From lenders 

listed In Clause
From ARCs

Details of loans acquired during the year
3

Aggregate principal outstanding of loans acquired
Aggregate consideration paid
Weighted average residual tenor of loans acquire

Nil Nil.
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
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Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory Information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 
31 March 2022

55 Disdosures under Liquidity Risk Management Framework for HFC - March 2022 
i) Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposit and borrowings)

% of total 
Deposits

% of Total 
Liabilities'

Amount
lakhs)

No. of Significant CounterpartiesSr. No.

88.6%1 17 3,41,831
* Total liability excludes equity

ii) Top 20 large deposits: Not applicable

lii) Top 10 Borrowings
Amount lakhs) % of Total Borrowings

2,89,549 79.8%

Iv) Funding concentration based on significant Instrument / product:

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)

% of Total 
Liabilities*

Name of the Instrument ftSr No

1 Term Loan
Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD) 
Commercial Paper 
Sub-ordinate Debt_____________

2,58,006
95,300

66.9%
24.7%2

3 0 0.0%
4 9,500 2.5%

# Principal Outstanding as on 31st March 2022 * Total liability excludes equity

v) Stock Ratios:
Name of the InstrumentSr No Percentage
Commercial Paper/Total Assets
Commercial Paper/Total External Liabilities
Short Term NCD (original maturity upto lyear)/Total Assets
Short Term NCD (original maturity upto lyear)/Total External Liabilities
Long Term Assets/Total Assets
Other Short Term Liabilities / Total External Liabilities
Other Short Term Llabllltles/Total Assets________________________

1 0.0%
2 0.0%
3 0.0%
4 0.0%
5 76.9%

26.1%
22.2%

6
7

* Total external liability excludes equity, Public funds are nil hence related ratios are not applicable.

4^ O
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J.

Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 
31 March 2022

vi) Institutional Setup of Risk Management

Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited has an Institutional Governance setup for Liquidity Risk Management as below:

1) Board of Directors

2) Risk Oversight Committee(ROC)

3) Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO)

Fullerton India Home Finance Company Limited (FIHFC) has a Risk Oversight Committee (ROC), a Board level Sub-committee to oversee liquidity risk management. Liquidity risk is managed by the 
Asset Liability Committee (ALCO), based on The Company’s Liquidity Policy and procedures which are based on guidelines provided by ROC. ALCO derives its authority from the ROC and is 
responsible for adherence to the liquidity and asset liability management limits and to oversee implementation of the strategic direction set by the Board. ALCO not only ensures that The Company 
has adequate liquidity on an on-going basis but also examines how liquidity requirements are likely to evolve under various assumptions.
The Board and ALCO have approved the Liquidity risk management policy. The overall Liquidity risk management of FIHFC is under the guidance of the ALCO and within the overall framework of the 
Board approved policies. FIHFC maintain adequate liquid assets that can be converted into cash promptly and used immediately to meet committed obligations.

As a strategy, FIHFC has investments in fixed deposits, government securities and balance in current account with banks which are highly liquid. FIHFC is funded through Term loans from banks. Non 
convertible bonds and Commercial Papers. The Company assesses the impact on short term liquidity gaps and maintain sufficient liquidity buffers.

The Company has a well-diversified funding mix with adequate proportion of long term borrowings.

is Company has reclassified/regrouped previous year figures to conform to current year's classification, where applicable.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors ofFor M P Chitale & Co 
Chartered Accountants

J)
Shantanu Mitra

Chairman, Non-Executive Directof' Non-Ei^cutive Director 
DIN: 03019468

PileekMurtuza Vajihi 
Partner

DIN : 08134389

AshiJh Chaudhary Jitendra Maheshwari «”■1

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

ICSI Reg. No.: 19621

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 11 May 2022

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 11 May 2022



SCHEDULE TO THE BALANCE SHEET OF A NON-BANKING FINANCIAL COMPANY
(as required in terms of paragraph 13 of Non-banking financials (Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms { Reserve Bank of India) Direction 2007)

S.No Particulars As at
31 March 2022 

(K lakhs)
Liabilities side:

Loans and advances availed by the Non-Banking Financial Company inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:1 Amount OverdueAmount
Outstanding

(a) Debentures (other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)
Secured
Unsecured

(b) Deferred Credits
(c) Term Loans
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing
(e) Commercial Paper
(f) Public Deposits
(g) Other Loans

98,285
9,776

2,57,890

2 Break-up of (l)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits Inclusive of Interest accrued thereon but not paid): Amount OverdueAmount
Outstanding

(a) In the form of Unsecured debentures
(b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where there is a shortfall in the value of security
(c) Other public deposits

Assets side;
3 Break-up of Loans and Advances Including bills receivables [other than those Included In (4) below]: Amount

Outstanding
(a) Gross Secured
(b) Gross Unsecured

4,17,268

Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities4 Amount
Outstanding

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :
(a) Finance Lease
(b) Operating Lease

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
(a) Assets on hire
(b) Repossessed Assets

(ill) Other Loans counting towards AFC activities :
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed 
(b) Loans other than (a) above

Break-up of Investments:5 Amount
Outstanding

Current Investments 
1. Quoted:

(i) Shares:
(a) Equity
(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others 

2. Unquoted:
(i) Shares:

2,499

(a) Equity
(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others - Certificate of Deposits 

- Commercial papers

Long Term Investments 
1. Quoted:

(i) Shares:
(a) Equity
(b) Preference

(il) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others 

2. Unquoted:
(i) Shares:

(a) Equity
(b) Preference

(il) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others



>

ParticularsS.No As at
31 March 2022 

(* lakhs)
TBorrower group-wise classification of all leased assets, stock-on-hire and loans and advances :6

Amount net of ProvisionCategory
Secured Unsecured Total

1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries
(b) Companies in the same group
(c) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties 3,93,051 0 3,93,051
Total 3,93,051 0 3,93,051

Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted):7

Market Value/ 
Break up or fair 
value or NAV

Book Value(Net of 
Provisions)

Category

1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries
(b) Companies in the same management
(c) Other related parties

2, Other than related parties 2,499 2,499
2,499 2,499Total

Amount
Outstanding

Other Information8

(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties
(b) Other than related parties

(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties
(b) Other than related parties

(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

25,996

12,270

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Fullerton India Credit Company Limited

AjafPar^ik 
Non-Execqtive Director 
DIN :08134389

Shantanu Mitra
Chairman, Non-Executive Director 
DIN: 03019468

AshisivChaudhary 
Chief Financial Officer

Jitendra Maheshwari 
Company Secretary
ICSI Reg. No.: 19621

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 11 May 2022

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 11 May 2022


